Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EFSECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year endddecember 31, 2010
Commission File Number: 000-23189

C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 41-188363C
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
14701 Charlson Road, Eden Prairie, Minnesot 55347-5088
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area c882:937-8500
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefAct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value $.10 per share The NASDAQ National Market
Preferred Share Purchase Ric

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(¢ghe#ct:None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405ed8#dturities Act.  YedX] No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act. Yes[ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirefilésuch reports) and (2) has been sut
to such filing requirements for the past 90 day¥es No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpovedbsite, if any, every Interactive Date
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRile 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this ¢bgpduring the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Y&d No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgedéfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 1l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large accelerated filaccelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting cpamy” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large accelerated filefx] Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer] Smaller reporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). YesO No

The aggregate market value of voting stock helddy-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30,@2@4As approximately $9,223,431,124
(based upon the closing price of $55.66 per comstame as quoted on The NASDAQ National Market).

As of February 22, 2011, the number of shares ating of the registrant’'s Common Stock, par v8® per share, was 166,057,428.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement ne¢pto its Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be hdlay 12, 2011 (the “Proxy Statement”),
are incorporated by reference in Parts | and IlI.




Table of Contents

Item 1.

Item 1A.
Item 1B.

Item 2.
Iltem 3.
Iltem 4.

Item 5.
Item 6.
Iltem 7.

Item 7A.

Item 8.
Item 9.

Item 9A.

Item 10.
Item 11.
Item 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.

Item 15.

C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
For the year ended December 31, 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART |
Business
Executive Officers
Risk Factors
Unresolved Staff Commen
Properties
Legal Proceeding
Removed and Reserv:

PART Il
Market for Registra’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, @asddr Purchases of Equity Securi
Selected Financial Da
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaiRisk
Financial Statements and Supplementary |
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants @ouring and Financial Disclosu
Controls and Procedur

PART IlI
Directors and Executive Officers of the Registi
Executive Compensatic
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dMahagement and Related Stockholder Mai
Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsParettor Independenc
Principal Accounting Fees and Servi

PART IV
Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Report~orm -K
Signature:

55
55
55
56
56

56
58



Table of Contents

PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. (“C.H. Robinson,” &ltompany,” “we,” “us,” or “our”) is one of the Igest third party logistics companies in
the world with 2010 consolidated total revenue$®8 billion. We provide freight transportationsees and logistics solutions to companies
of all sizes, in a wide variety of industries. gi2010 we handled approximately 9.2 million shiptsdor more than 36,000 customers. We
operate through a network of 231 offices, whichoak branches, in North America, Europe, Asia, §cdinerica, Australia, and the Middle
East. We have developed global multimodal trangpiort and distribution networks to provide transation and supply chain services
worldwide. As a result, we have the capability afifitating most aspects of the supply chain orelfedf our customers.

As a third party logistics provider, we cultivatentractual relationships with a wide variety ofisportation companies, and utilize those
relationships to efficiently and cost effectivetgrisport our customers’ freight. We have contrdaelationships with approximately 49,000
transportation companies, including motor carriearoads (primarily intermodal service provideriy freight and ocean carriers. Depenc

on the needs of our customer and their supply cleajnirements, we select and hire the appropniatesportation for each shipment. Because
we rely on subcontractors to transport freight,oar be flexible and focus on seeking solutionswhaak for our customers, rather than
focusing on asset utilization. As an integral mdrbur transportation services, we provide a walege of value-added logistics services, such
as supply chain analysis, freight consolidatiomgazarrier program management, and informationnéemp

In addition to multimodal transportation serviceg, have two other services: sourcing services (f8png”) and fee-based information
services (“Information Services”).

Our Sourcing business is primarily the buying,isglland marketing of fresh produce. It was ougioal business when we were founded in
1905. Much of our logistics expertise can be tracegur significant experience in handling prodace temperature controlled commodities.
We supply fresh produce through our network of patelent produce growers and suppliers. Our cus®imelude grocery retailers and
restaurants, produce wholesalers, and foodseristdbditors. In many cases, we also arrange thmessprart of the products we sell through our
contractual relationships with owners of specialig@ansportation equipment. We have developed f@igpy brands of produce including T
Fresh 1® and OurWorl® Organics, and we also havkigixe licensing agreements to distribute fresldpo@ under consumer recognized
brand names such as Tropica&na , Weléh's , Méttand, Glory Food$ . The produce for these brandsueced through our preferred
grower network and packed to order through confracking agreements. We have instituted qualityrasge and monitoring procedures
with each of these preferred growers.

Information Services is comprised of a C.H. Robimsabsidiary, T-Chek Systems, Inc. (T-Chek). T-Cisek business-to-business provider
of spend management and payment processing serVicesnajority of T-Chek’s customers are motorieasrand truck stop chains. T-
Chek’s platform supports open and closed loop nedsvthat facilitate a variety of funds transfernder payments, fuel purchasing, and
online expense management.

Our business model has been the main driver ohistwrical results and has positioned us for cargihgrowth. One of our competitive
advantages is our branch network of 231 officexffexdd by approximately 5,900 salespeople. Thesaechramployees are in close proximity
both customers and transportation providers, whiehs them broad knowledge of their local markeis @nables them to respond quickly to
customers’ and transportation providers’ changiegds. Branch employees act as a team in their effitets, customer service, and
operations. A significant portion of our branch doyees’ compensation is performanmeented, based on the profitability of their briaranc
their contributions to the success of the branch.Balieve this makes our sales employees morecgeoviented, focused, and creative.
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Approximately 37 percent of our truckload shipmeats shared transactions between branches. OwHasmwork together to complete
transactions and collectively meet the needs otastomers. For large multcation customers, we often coordinate our efforisne branc
and rely on multiple branch locations to deliveedfic geographic or modal needs. Our methodoldgyraviding services is very similar
across all branches. Our North American branches hacommon technology platform that they use tochaustomer needs with supplier
capabilities, to collaborate with other branch tomas, and to utilize centralized support resoutoesomplete all facets of the transaction.

We are a service company. We act primarily to aaldevand expertise in the procurement and execofitnansportation and logistics,
including sourcing of produce products for our custrs. Our total revenues represent the total idedlie of services and goods we sell to
our customers. Our net revenues are our total tmgeless purchased transportation and relateccesnincluding contracted motor carrier,
rail, ocean, air, and other costs, and the purchase and services related to the products wecso@ur net revenues are the primary
indicator of our ability to source, add value, @etl services and products that are provided b farties, and we consider them to be our
primary performance measurement. Accordingly, tiseussion of our results of operations focusesherchanges in our net revenues.

Historically, we have grown primarily through inmtat growth, by growing market share through theitamtdof new customers and expanding
our relationships with our current customers, agdiaw services, expanding our market presence pachitions globally, and hiring
additional salespeople. We have augmented our priwugh selective acquisitions.

Multimodal Transportation and Logistics Services

C.H. Robinson provides freight transportation agldted logistics and supply-chain services. Owises range from commitments on a
specific shipment to much more comprehensive ategjrated relationships. We execute these servitamtments by hiring and training
people, developing proprietary systems and teclgygbwocesses, and utilizing our network of subamted transportation providers,
including contract motor carriers, railroads, a@ight carriers, and ocean carriers. We make atpmothe difference between what we charge
to our customers for the totality of services pdad to them and what we pay to the transportatiowigers to handle or transport the freight.
While industry definitions vary, given our externsisubcontracting to create a flexible network dfisons, we are generally referred to in the
industry as a third-party logistics company.

We provide all of the following transportation alodistics services:

» Truckload — Through our contracts with motor casjeve have access to dry vans, temperature clatredns, and flatbeds. We
also offer time-definite and expedited truck traorsation. In many instances, we will consolidatetiphshipments for several
customers into full truckload

e Less Than Truckload (“LTL") — LTL transportationvialves the shipment of small packages and singtaudtiple pallets of
freight, up to and including full trailer load fggit. We focus on shipments of a single pallet agdg although we handle any size
shipment. Through our contracts with motor carrard our operating system, we consolidate freigttfeeight information to
provide our customers with a single source of imfation on their freight

» Intermodal —Our intermodal transportation service is the shiphoé freight in trailers or containers by a condtion of truck an
rail. We have intermodal marketing agreements waathtainer owners and all Class 1 railroads in Néntterica, and we arrange
local pickup and delivery (known as drayage) thtolagal contracted motor carrie

» Ocean —We consolidate shipments, determine routing, seleean carriers, contract for ocean shipments,igedor local picku,
and delivery of shipments, and arrange for custoeerance of shipments, including the payment tiedL
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» Air — We provide doc-to-door service as a fi-service international and domestic air freight farder.

» Other Logistics Services — We provide fee-baseasiartation management services, customs brokensgehousing services,
and other service

Customers communicate their freight needs, typiaatl a shipment-by-shipment basis, to the bransharsible for their account. Customers
communicate with us by means of telephone, fagrimgt, email, or Electronic Data Interchange (EDRe branch employee ensures that all
appropriate information about each shipment isredtento our proprietary operating system. With liledp of information provided by the
operating system, the salesperson then selectsteacted carrier or carriers, based upon his okhewledge of the carrier’'s service
capability, equipment availability, freight ratesyd other relevant factors. Based on the informat® or she has about the market and rates,
the salesperson may either determine an appromii at that point or wait to communicate witbamtracted carrier directly before settir
price. In many cases, employees from different ¢hnaoffices collaborate to hire the appropriate cted carrier for our customers’ freight,
and the branch offices agree to an internal pspifit.

Once the contracted carrier is selected, the sadesp communicates with the contract carrier te@g@n the price for the transportation and
the contract carrier’'s commitment to provide ttensportation. We are in contact with the contractier through numerous means of
communication (including EDI, our proprietary wabsCHRWTrucks® (www.chrwtrucks.com), email, fax, aatéphone) to meet our
customers’ requirements as well as track the stHttise shipment from origin to delivery.

For most of our transportation and logistics se¥sjave are a service provider. By accepting theoousr’s order, we accept certain
responsibilities for transportation of the shipmiamn origin to destination. The carrier’s contractvith us, not the customer, and we are
responsible for prompt payment of freight chargeshe cases where we have agreed (either conslictr otherwise) to pay for claims for
damage to freight while in transit, we pursue rainsement from the contracted carrier for the claim®ur transportation management
business, we are acting as a shipper’s agentobetbases, the carrier's contract is with the castpand we collect a fee for our services.

As a result of our logistics capabilities, someuof customers have us handle all, or a substgrdréibn, of their freight transportation
requirements. Our branch employees price our sesviz provide a profit to us for the totality of\eees performed for the customer. In some
cases, our services to the customer are pricedspotanarket, or transactional, basis. In a nuroberstances, we have contracts with the
customer in which we agree to handle an estimatesber of shipments, usually to specified destimaicuch as from the custonseplant tc

a distribution center. Our commitments to handéeshipments are usually at pre-determined ratest bfaur rate commitments are for one
year or less and therefore allow for renegotiatimis typical in the transportation industry, mokthese contracts do not include spec
volume commitments. When we enter into prearramgtglagreements for truckload services with outorusrs, we usually have surcharge
agreements in addition to the underlying line-tgartion of the rate.

We purchase the majority of our truckload servites our contract truckload carriers on a spot regrér transactional, basis, even when we
are working with the customer on a contractualdaathen we enter into spot transactions with cahireotor carriers, we generally negotiate
a mutually-agreed upon total market rate that itetuall costs, including any applicable fuel expefowever, if requested by the contract
carrier, we will estimate and report fuel sepasatil a small number of cases, we may get advaogeritments from one or more contract
carriers to transport contracted shipments fotghgth of our customer contract. In those casesyavtve have prearranged rates with con
carriers, there is a calculated fuel surchargecasea mutually agreed-upon formula.

In the course of providing day-ttay transportation services, our branch employées alentify opportunities for additional logistiservice
as they become more familiar with our customerdydaperations and the
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nuances of their supply chains. We offer a widegyeaof logistics services on a worldwide basis thdtice or eliminate supply chain
inefficiencies. We will analyze the customers’ antrtransportation rate structures, modes of shgp@nd carrier selection. We can identify
opportunities to consolidate shipments for costregs We will suggest ways to improve operating ahigpping procedures and manage
claims. We can help customers minimize storageutjiraross-docking and other flow-through operatidvie may also examine the
customers’ warehousing and dock procedures. Matiyesie services are bundled with underlying trarigapon services and are not typically
priced separately. They are usually included aartgd the cost of transportation services providgdis, based on the nature of the customer
relationship. In addition to these transportatierviees, we may supply sourcing, contract waretmgysionsulting, fee-based transportation
management, and other services, for which we arallysgpaid separately.

As we have emphasized integrated logistics solatioar relationships with many customers have l®oad, and we have become key
providers to our customers, responsible for helpirggn manage a greater portion of their supplyrchalVe may serve our customers through
specially created teams and through several bran€he multimodal transportation services are gtedito numerous international custon
through our worldwide branch network. See Note ltém 8 for an allocation of our total revenuesrirdomestic and foreign customers for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2@D8uw long-lived assets as of December 31, 201d 2809 in the United States and in
foreign locations.

The table below shows our net revenues by transiamtmode for the periods indicated:

Transportation Net Revenues

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Truck @ $1,076,24 $1,040,70: $1,030,07! $ 949,27 $822,95:
Intermodal 36,55( 35,24¢ 43,61¢ 38,67( 36,17¢
Ocear 60,76 54,18¢ 62,09: 43,53( 37,15(
Air 42,31! 32,66: 35,39( 31,31t 21,53:
Other Logistics Service 57,25¢ 44,78¢ 41,40" 35,24( 28,15
Total $1,273,12! $1,207,58: $1,212,57! $1,098,03. $945,96!

(1) Includes truckload and LTL net revenu

Transportation services accounted for approximaiélpercent of our net revenues in 2010 and 88pexf our net revenues in 2009 and
2008.

Sourcing

Since we were founded in 1905, we have been ibilssess of sourcing fresh produce. Much of ouistazs expertise can be traced to our
significant experience in handling produce and offegishable commodities. Because of its perishastare, produce must be rapidly
packaged, carefully transported within tight tintdés usually in temperature controlled equipmemd, guickly distributed to replenish high-
turnover inventories maintained by retailers, wkalers, foodservice companies, and restaurantsahy instances, we consolidate individ
customers’ produce orders into truckload quantaiethe point of origin and arrange for transpastabf the truckloads, often to multiple
destinations.

Our Sourcing customer base includes large multesgoocery retailers, restaurant chains, and favdseproviders, and growers.
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Our Sourcing services have expanded to includeésteng and replenishment, brand management, daadargt development services. We
have various national and regional branded proguegrams, including both proprietary brands andébnat licensed brands. These programs
contain a wide variety of fresh bulk and value atiftaits and vegetables that are high in qualitye§e brands have expanded our market
presence and relationships with many of our retatomers. We have also instituted quality ass@rand monitoring programs as part of our
branded and preferred grower programs.

Sourcing accounted for approximately nine percéuo net revenues in 2010 and 2009, and eightepéiia 2008.

Information Services

T-Chek’s customers are primarily motor carriers aimdk stop chains. T-Chek provides its customatls fuel management services, funds
transfer, spend management reporting, driver pbhyeovices, permits, and online access to custahbusiness intelligence, all through the
use of its proprietary automated systems. Thedersgsenable customers to track and manage cerpémses, including fuel and
maintenance. For several companies and truck $taipg, T-Chek captures sales and fuel cost dataidas management information to the
seller, and invoices the carrier for fuel, cashaambes, and our fee.

Information Services accounted for approximatelyrfpercent of our net revenues in 2010, three pefeour net revenues in 2009, and four
percent in 2008.

Organization

Branch NetworkTo keep us close to our customers and marketsperate through a network of offices, which we tathnches.” We
currently have 231 branches.

We have branches in the following areas of the avorl

Number of
Region Branches
North America 17¢€
Europe 29
Asia 20
South Americe 4
Australia 1
Middle Easi 1

Each branch is responsible for its own growth amdifability. Our branch salespeople are respomrsibi developing new business,
negotiating and pricing services, receiving anccpssing service requests from customers, and ovingawith carriers to provide the
transportation requested. In addition to routim@sportation, salespeople are often called uptandle customers’ unusual, seasonal, and
emergency needs. Shipments to be transported &y aine priced at the branch level, and brancheparate with each other to hire contract
carriers to provide transportation. Branches méyae expertise in other branches when contradtiflg, intermodal, international ocean, ¢
air shipments. Multiple branches may also work thgeto service larger, national accounts whereeitpertise and resources of more than
one branch are required to meet the customer’'ssndéxeir efforts are usually coordinated by onadiebranch on the account.

Salespeople in the branches both sell to and seth@r customers. Sales opportunities are identifairough our internal database, referrals
from current customers, leads generated by brafiicie @ersonnel through knowledge of their locadl aagional markets, and third party
sources such as industry directories. Salespeople
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are also responsible for recruiting new contractiees, who are referred to our centralized cas@wices group to make sure they are
properly licensed and insured and have acceptalfd¢ysratings.

Branch ExpansiorWe expect to continue to open new branch officesv ldranch offices are viewed as a long-term coutoibto overall
company growth. In addition to market opportunéymajor consideration in opening a new branch isthdr we have branch salespeople that
are ready to manage a new branch. Additional besahe sometimes opened within a geographic aexépsly served by another branch,
such as within major cities, as the volume of beisinin a particular area warrants opening a sephrahch. A modest amount of capital is
required to open a new branch, usually involvingase for a small amount of office space, commuiaca and hardware, and often
employee compensation guaranties for a short Mifehave also augmented our branch office netwadutfh selective acquisitions.

Branch EmployeeBecause the quality of our employees is essentialit success, we are highly selective in our §irDur applicants
typically have college degrees, and some have éssiexperience, although not necessarily withirirdresportation industry.

Early in their tenure, most newly-hired branch esgpes go through centralized training that empleasitlevelopment of the necessary skills,
including technology training on our proprietarys®ms and our customer service philosophy, to beqmeductive members of a branch
team. Centralized training is followed by ongoing;thejob training at the branch level. We expect most salespeople to start contributi
to the success of the branch in a matter of weeks.

Employees at a branch operate and are compensdtadé part on a team basis. The team structur®ivated by our performance-based
compensation system, in which a significant portédthe cash compensation of most branch managersalespeople is dependent on the
profitability of their particular branch. Branch negers and salespeople who have been employetlléasaone complete year are paid a
performance-based bonus, which is a portion obthech’s earnings for that calendar year. The p¢age they can potentially earn is
predetermined in an annual bonus contract andsischan their productivity and contributions to twerall success of the branch. Employees
can also receive profit sharing contributions theghend on our overall profitability and other fastm our 401(k) plan. In some special
circumstances, such as opening new branches, wguzagntee a level of compensation to the branctager and key salespeople for a <
period of time.

All of our managers and certain other employees hdage significant responsibilities are eligibleptarticipate in our amended 1997 Omnibus
Stock Plan. Within that plan, in 2003 we began ladyiissuing restricted stock and restricted stonks as our primary equity awards
because we believe these awards are an effectiVéotacreating long-term ownership and alignmesiween employees and our
shareholders. For most restricted equity awardsricéed stock and units are available to vest divercalendar years, based on the company’
earnings growth.

Individual salespeople benefit both through theaghoand profitability of individual branches and éghieving individual goals. They are
motivated by the opportunity to advance in a vgradtcareer paths, including branch managemenpacate sales, and large account
management. We have a “promote from within” phifgdspand fill nearly all branch management positiaith current employees.

Shared Services

Our branches are supported by our corporate exesusind shared services. Approximately 15 perdemiimemployees are corporate
employees who provide shared services in centchlizaters. Approximately 28 percent of these cagoemployees are information
technology personnel who develop and maintain oopretary operating system software and our wiga aetwork.
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Executive Officers

Under our decentralized business structure, braraagers, while retaining autonomy for their brapetformance, receive guidance and
support from the executives at our central corgoodfice. These executives provide training andcatlan, develop new services and
applications to be offered to customers, analyzkraanitor branch productivity and performance nestrshare operations and management
guidance, and provide broad market analysis.

The Board of Directors designates the executivie@® annually. Below are the names, ages, andigrosiof the executive officers:

Name Age Position

John P. Wiehof 49 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Bo
James E. Butt 55  Senior Vice Presider

Ben G. Campbe 45  Vice President, General Counsel and Secre
James P. Lemk 43  Senior Vice Presidetl

Chad M. Lindbloon 46  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Scott A. Satterle 42  Senior Vice Presidetl

Mark A. Walker 53  Senior Vice Presider

John P. Wiehoff has been chief executive office€di. Robinson since May 2002, president of the gamy since December 1999, a director
since 2001, and became the chairman in January. Bdévious positions with the company include sewice president from October 1998,
chief financial officer from July 1998 to Decemlde&x99, treasurer from August 1997 to June 1998 cangiorate controller from 1992 to June
1998. Prior to that, John was employed by Arthudéssen LLP. John also serves on the Boards of @i®of Polaris Industries Inc. (NYS
PIl) and Donaldson Company, Inc. (NYSE: DCI). Hédsca Bachelor of Science degree from St. Johnigeysity.

James E. Butts was named senior vice presidenéaei@ber 2007, having served as an executive aimgofff C.H. Robinson since April
2002. Previous positions with the company includsbh manager at the Chicago South and Detroichem Jim has been with C.H.
Robinson since 1978 and holds a Bachelor of Artgeefrom Wayne State University and a Mastersusifiess Administration from
Phoenix University. Jim serves on the Advisory BbafLogistics Quarterly, and on the Editorial Board of CSCMP Supply Chairarterly.
He is a member of the University of Minnesota, €aml School of Management's Supply Chain and OpasBBoard of Advisors, as well as
Board member of the National Association of Mantifeers. Jim is also a member of the Board of Daescof Store to Door, a non-profit
agency that delivers groceries to adults who aeblgnto shop for themselves, and a Board membelufuior Achievement of the Upper
Midwest.

Ben G. Campbell was named vice president, genetalsel and secretary in January 2009. Ben joinkd Robinson in 2004 and most
recently held the position of assistant generahsel Before coming to C.H. Robinson, Ben was &paiat Rider Bennett, LLP, in
Minneapolis, MN. Ben holds a Bachelor of Sciencgrde from St. John’s University and a Juris Dofitom William Mitchell School of
Law.

James P. Lemke was named senior vice presidersgdeber 2007, having served as vice presidentcisgusince 2003. Prior to that time,
he served as the vice president and manager ofRabinson’s Corporate Procurement and DistribuBervices branch. Jim joined the
company in 1989. Jim holds a Bachelor of Arts degneinternational Relations from the UniversityMinnesota. Jim also serves on the
Board of Directors of the United Fresh Produce A&dmn.

Chad M. Lindbloom was named a senior vice presideBiecember 2007. He has served as an executiVasaohief financial officer since
1999. From June 1998 until December 1999, he saseawrporate controller. Chad joined the compar90. Chad holds a Bachelor of
Science degree and a Masters of Business Admitidstra
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from the Carlson School of Management at the Usitienof Minnesota. Chad also serves on the Boafdii@ctors of Xata Corporation
(NASDAQ: XATA), a provider of vehicle data and fteperations services to the trucking industry, sra member of the Board of Direct
of Children’s Hospitals and Clinics of Minnesota.

Scott A. Satterlee was named a senior vice presidddecember 2007. He has served as an executiveféicer of C.H. Robinson since
February 2002. Additional positions with C.H. Radmn include director of operations and managen®f3alt Lake City branch. Scott joined
the company in 1991. Scott holds a Bachelor of degree from the University of St. Thomas. Scatd aerves on the Board of Directors of
Fastenal (NASDAQ: FAST), the largest fastener itigtor in the nation.

Mark A. Walker was named senior vice president @c@mber 2007, after serving as a vice presidenoditeér since December 1999.
Additional positions with C.H. Robinson include ehinformation officer from December 1999 to OctoB801 and president of T-Chek.
Mark joined the company in 1980. Mark holds a Ba@hef Science degree from lowa State Universitg arMasters of Business
Administration from the University of St. Thomas.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had a total of 7,62Bleyees, 6,493 of whom were located in our brarfibes. Services such as accounting,
information technology, legal, marketing, humarotese support, credit and claims management, amiicaervices are supported centrally.

Customer Relationships

We seek to establish long-term relationships withaustomers and to increase the amount of busdwass with each customer by providing
them with a full range of logistics services. Dgri2010, we served over 36,000 customers worldwateging from Fortune 100 companies to
small businesses in a wide variety of industriasiiy 2010, our largest customer accounted for@pprately five percent of total revenues
and approximately three percent of net revenuesedent years, we have grown by adding new cus®arad by increasing our volumes w
and providing more services to, our existing cugisn

Branches seek additional business from existingpousrs and pursue new customers based on theirl&dgerof the marketplace and the
range of value of logistics services that we cavigle. We believe that our account managementplises and decentralized structure en:
our salespeople to better serve our customersimpicing a broad knowledge of logistics and marketditions, with a deep understanding
the specific supply chain issues facing individuadtomers and certain vertical industries. Withghmlance of our executive team, branches
are given significant latitude to pursue opportigsitand to commit our resources to serve our cLstem

We have also expanded our corporate sales and timgrlseipport to enhance branch sales capabilBemiches also call on our executives
and our corporate sales staff to support themerptirsuit of new business with companies that Inawe2 complex logistics requirements.

Relationships with Transportation Providers

We continually work on establishing contractuahtinships with qualified transportation providérat also meet our service requirement
assure dependable services, favorable pricingcanttact carrier availability during periods whesntand for transportation equipment is

greater than the supply. Because we do not owrirangportation equipment or employ the people tiréavolved with the delivery of our

customers’ freight, these relationships are ciiticaur success.

In 2010, we worked with approximately 49,000 trasrsgtion providers worldwide, of which the vast ority are contracted motor carriers.
To strengthen and maintain our relationships witliancarriers, our salespeople
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regularly communicate with carriers and try to sisiem by increasing their equipment utilizaticeducing their empty miles, and
repositioning their equipment. To make it easierciontract carriers to work with us, we have a@obf prompt payment upon receipt of
proof of delivery. For those contract carriers winmuld like a faster payment, we also offer paymeitiiin 48 hours of receipt of proof of
delivery in exchange for a discount, along withediffig in-trip cash advances through our T-Chek islidny.

These contracted motor carriers provide accesnpérature controlled vans, dry vans, and flatbEdsse contract carriers are of all sizes,
including owner-operators of a single truck, snaaill mid-size fleets, private fleets, and the largational trucking companies.
Consequently, we are not dependent on any oneasbriarrier. Our largest truck transportation pdeviwas less than one percent of our total
cost of transportation in 2010. Motor carriers thatl fewer than 100 tractors transported approxin®3 percent of our truckload shipments
in 2010. Every carrier with which we do businesgeiguired to execute a contract that establishegitle carrier is acting as an independent
contractor. At the time the contract is executed, periodically thereafter, we verify that eachrigaris properly licensed and insured, has the
necessary federally-issued authority to providedp@rtation services, and has the ability to previte necessary level of service on a
dependable basis. Our motor carrier contracts redjat the carrier issue invoices only to and pcpayment solely from us for the
shipments that they transport under their contréitt us, and allow us to withhold payment to satigfevious claims or shortages. Our
standard contracts do not include volume commitsyeartd the initial contract rate is modified eaaofetwe confirm an individual shipment
with a carrier.

We also have intermodal marketing agreements waitttainer owners and all Class 1 railroads in Ndwtherica, giving us access to
additional trailers and containers. Our contradth vailroads specify the transportation serviced payment terms by which our intermodal
shipments are transported by rail. Intermodal frartation rates are typically negotiated betweeandsthe railroad on a customer-specific
basis. We have entered into a two year lease foic8atainers through our relationships with onéhefClass 1 railroads. We believe that
these containers have helped us better serve storoars and we will continue to analyze the stsatégontrolling containers.

In our non-vessel operating common carrier (“NVOE@GEean transportation and freight forwarding bess we have contracts with most of
the major ocean carriers which support a varietyeofice and rate needs for our customers. We gaeinnual contracts that establish the
predetermined rates we agree to pay the oceamisarfihe rates are negotiated based on expectecheslfrom our customers, specific trade
lane requirements, and anticipated growth in tierivational shipping marketplace. These contraet®tien amended throughout the year to
reflect changes in market conditions for our busénsuch as additional trade lanes.

We operate both as a consolidator and as a tramsalcair freight forwarder internationally andMorth America. We determine routing,
select air carriers, provide for local pickup amdivkery of shipments, and arrange for customs aleee of shipments, including the payment
of duties. We execute our air freight servicesulgtoour relationships with air carriers, througlartér services, block space agreements,
capacity space agreements, and transactional sp&etmegotiations. Through charter services, weraot part or all of an airplane to meet
customer requirements. Our block space agreemedtsapacity space agreements are contracts fdireedd¢ime period. The contracts
include fixed allocations for predetermined flightsagreed upon rates that are reviewed periogdittaibughout the year. The transactional
negotiations afford us the ability to capture escempacity at prevailing market rates for a spesifipment.

Competition

The transportation services industry is highly cetitive and fragmented. We compete against a laugeber of logistics companies, truck
companies, property freight brokers, carriers affgtogistics services, and freight forwarders. &l buy from and sell transportation
services to companies that compete with us.
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In our Sourcing business, we compete with produokdss, produce growers, produce marketing compapi®duce wholesalers, and
foodservice buying groups. We also buy from ant@elduce to companies that compete with us.

The primary business of our Information Servicesibess is fuel card services. The fuel card prawgssdustry is very consolidated and a
small number of companies represent the majorith@fmarket.

We often compete with respect to price, scope Bfices, or a combination thereof, but believe that most significant competitive
advantages are:

»  Our branch network, which enables our salespeopi@in broad knowledge about individual customeastiers, and the local and
regional markets they serve, and to provide supetistomer service based on that knowledge. Thisark also offers customers
higher service as responsibility for shipmentsosmonly shared across branches, to provide natamedverage and local
market knowledge

e QOur 49,000 contracted carrier relationsh

« Our size, relative to other providers, is an adagatin attracting more carriers, which in turn deslos to serve our customers
more efficiently and earn more business. Additibnddecause of the large number of transactionsevannually, 9.2 million in
2010, we have greater opportunity to efficientlgntlfy available capacity for our custon” needs

» Our business model, which enables us to remaitibfiein our service offerings to our custome

» Our dedicated employees and entrepreneurial culivhieh are supported by our performs-based compensation syste
e Our proprietary information systerr

« Our ability to provide a broad range of logisties\vices;

e Our ability to provide doc-to-door services on a worldwide basis; ¢

e Our financial strength and stabilit

Proprietary Information Technology

Our information systems are essential to our ghititefficiently communicate, service our customeand contracted carriers, and manage our
business. In 2010, our proprietary information sy helped our employees efficiently handle moa@ $h2 million shipments, 36,000
customer relationships, and 49,000 contract carglationships. Our employees are linked with eatbler and with our customers, carriers,
and suppliers by telephone, fax, internet, email/ar EDI to communicate shipment requirementsarailability, and to confirm and bill
orders.

Our branch employees use our information systendetatify freight matching opportunities, commurteeand coordinate activity with other
branches, and “cross-cover” or find equipment thieo branches’ freight. Our systems help our saegle service customer orders, select the
optimal modes of transportation, build and consaédshipments, and select routes, all based onroastspecific service parameters. Our
systems also make shipment data visible to theeesdiles team as well as customers and contraatgdrs, enabling our salespeople to select
contracted carriers and track shipments in prog@as systems automatically provide alerts to aggiroblems. Our systems also provide
performance and productivity reports that our mansi@nd executives can use to more efficiently memar business.

Through our internet sites CHRWonlifie (www.chrwaslicom) and CHRWTruck®& , customers and contraceaibcs can contract for
shipments or equipment as well as track and traigenents, including delivery
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confirmation. Customers, contracted carriers, aqppkers also have access to other informatioruinoperating systems through the internet.
Our systems use data captured from daily transectmm generate various management reports thatvarable to our customers and
contracted carriers. These reports provide them information on traffic patterns, product mix gmduction schedules, and support
analysis of their own customer base, transportatigenditure trends, and the impact on out-of-reotds.

Government Regulation

We are subject to licensing and regulation as pgng freight broker and are licensed by the U.&p&@tment of Transportation (“DOT”) to
arrange for the transportation of property by metmicle. The DOT prescribes qualifications foritagtin this capacity, including certain
surety bonding requirements. We are also subje@gduolation by the Federal Maritime Commission m®eean freight forwarder and a
NVOCC and we maintain separate bonds and licemsesath. We operate as an indirect air carrieaa@ subject to commercial standa

set forth by the International Air Transport Assdiin and federal regulations issued by the Tramafon Security Administration and
provide customs brokerage services as a custorkeibuader a license issued by the Bureau of U.StdDus and Border Protection. We also
have and maintain other licenses as required by law

Although Congress enacted legislation in 1994 shiastantially preempts the authority of statesxey@se economic regulation of motor
carriers and brokers of freight, some intrastatprsbnts for which we arrange transportation magudgect to additional licensing,
registration, or permit requirements. We generatdigtractually require and/or rely on the carriangporting the shipment to ensure
compliance with these types of requirements. Wan@lvith the contracted carriers that we rely oariranging transportation services for our
customers, are also subject to a variety of fedmrdlstate safety and environmental regulationtholigh compliance with the regulations
governing licensees in these areas has not hadesiatiyt adverse effect on our operations or firiahcondition in the past, there can be no
assurance that such regulations or changes theiletmt adversely impact our operations in theufiet Violation of these regulations could
also subject us to fines as well as increased sléability.

We source fresh produce under licenses issuedeiy 8. Department of Agriculture as required byRleeishable Agricultural Commaodities
Act (“PACA”"). Other sourcing and distribution adties may be subject to various federal and sttd find drug statutes and regulations.
Our T-Chek operations are subject to federal aaie segulations, including, but not limited to, 8@&nk Secrecy Act of 1970.

Risk Management and Insurance

We contractually require all motor carriers we waiikh to carry at least $750,000 in automobileiliagbinsurance and $25,000 in cargo
insurance. We also require all motor carriers tintain workers compensation and other insurancerame as required by law. Many carr
have insurance exceeding these minimum requiremieatsoads, which are generally self-insured, ptevimited common carrier liability
protection, generally up to $250,000 per shipment.

As a property freight broker, we are not legalgblie for damage to our customers’ cargo. In outornsr contracts, we may agree to assume
cargo liability up to a stated maximum. We do reguame cargo liability to our customers above mimmudustry standards in our
international freight forwarding, ocean transpaotat and air freight businesses. We offer our aqugts the option to purchase ocean marine
cargo coverage to insure goods in transit. Whemagvee to store goods for our customers for lorgrand, we provide limited
warehouseman’s coverage to our customers and coftravarehousing services from companies thatigeous the same degree of
coverage.

We maintain a broad cargo liability insurance potie protect us against catastrophic losses thgtnmoabe recovered from the responsible
contracted carrier. We also carry various liabilitgurance policies, including
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automobile and general liability, with a $200 naitliumbrella in 2008, 2009, and 2010. Our contingemdmobile liability coverage has a
retention of $3 million per incident for 2008, ad8 million per incident in 2009, 2010, and 2011.

Agricultural chemicals used on agricultural comntiedi intended for human consumption are subjeeatimus approvals, and the
commodities themselves are subject to regulationd@anliness and contamination. Concern abouicpéat chemicals and alleged
contamination can lead to product recalls, anddaitns may be brought by consumers of allegediycédd produce. As a seller of produce,
we may, under certain circumstances, have legpbresbility arising from produce sales. We carrgdurct liability coverage under our
general liability and umbrella policies to coverttdaims. In addition, in the event of a recalg wmay be required to bear the costs of
repurchasing, transporting, and destroying angatly contaminated product, as well as potentinsequential damages, which are gene
not insured. Any recall or allegation of contamioatcould affect our reputation, particularly ofrqaroprietary and licensed branded produce
programs. Loss due to spoilage (including the rieedisposal) is also a routine part of the sowgdinsiness.

Investor Information

We were reincorporated in Delaware in 1997 as ticeesssor to a business existing, in various legahg$, since 1905. Our corporate office is
located at 14701 Charlson Road, Eden Prairie, Miotee 55347-5088, and our telephone number is @5%2)8500. Copies of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 1@Qrrent Reports on Form 8-K, and amendmentsdsetineports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secuwriigchange Act of 1934 are available free of chéngaugh our website
(www.chrobinson.com) as soon as reasonably prddéiceter we electronically file the material withke Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Cautionary Statement Relevant to Forward-Looking Iformation

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and our financtatements, “Management’s Discussion and AnalysKiméincial Condition and Results
of Operations” in Item 7 of this report and othecdments incorporated by reference contain ceftfaiward-looking statements” within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 398 amended, and Section 21E of the Securitiekdixge Act of 1934, as amended.
When used in this Form 10-K and in our other fiingith the Securities and Exchange Commissionuimpeess releases, presentations to
securities analysts or investors, in oral statemarade by or with the approval of any of our exeusfficers, the words or phrases
“believes,” “may,” “could,” “will,” “expects,” “shaild,” “continue,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “willikely result,” “estimates,” “projects,” or

similar expressions and variations thereof arenihée to identify such forward-looking statements.

Except for the historical information containedtiis Form 10-K, the matters set forth in this doemtrmay be deemed to be forward-looking
statements that represent our expectations, baléntions, or strategies concerning future evenhese forward-looking statements are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties thatccoause actual results to differ materially froor bistorical experience or our present
expectations, including, but not limited to, suabitbrs such as changes in economic conditionsasialrecession; decreased consumer
confidence; changes in market demand and pressarié pricing for our services; competition andvgth rates within the third party
logistics industry; freight levels and availabily truck capacity or alternative means of transpgrfreight; changes in relationships with
existing contracted truck, rail, ocean, and airiees; changes in our customer base due to possibisolidation among our customers; our
ability to integrate the operations of acquired pamies with our historic operations successfulks associated with litigation and insurau
coverage,; risks associated with operations outsidiee U.S.; risks associated with the potentigdacts of changes in government regulati
risks associated with the produce industry, ineglgdbod safety and contamination issues; fuel sigat and the impact of war on the
economy; and other risks and uncertainties, inalgidnose described below.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following caution statements if you own our common stock or #&arpng to buy our common stock.
intend to take advantage of the “safe harbor” fwiovis of the Private Securities Litigation Reforrot Af 1995 (the “PSLRA”) by providing
this discussion. We are not undertaking to addvesgpdate each factor in future filings or commatiiens regarding our business or results
except to the extent required by law.

Economic recessions could have a significant, adgerimpact on our businessThe transportation industry historically has exgeced
cyclical fluctuations in financial results due twoeomic recession, downturns in business cyclesintustomers, interest rate fluctuations,
and other economic factors beyond our control. fat&ion in the economic environment subjects lmusiness to various risks, which may
have a material impact on our operating resultscanuge us to not reach our long-term growth goals:

» Decrease in volumesA-reduction in overall freight volumes in the magace reduces our opportunities for growth. A gigant
portion of our freight is transactional or “spotanket opportunities. The transactional market maynore impacted than the
freight market overall by the economic recessiaraddition, if a downturn in our customers’ bussegcles causes a reduction in
the volume of freight shipped by those customeasgtiqularly among certain national retailers othia food, beverage, retail,
manufacturing, paper, or printing industries, opermating results could be adversely affected. Sidvegght volumes in the
marketplace also impact growth in our Informati@mnéces business due to reduced use of their arel gervices

» Credit risk and working capital—Some of our custosmray face economic difficulties and may not ble &b pay us, and some
may go out of business. In addition, some custommeng not pay us as quickly as they have in the pasising our working capit
needs to increas

» Transportation provider failures—A significant nuentof our transportation providers may go out afibess and we may be
unable to secure sufficient equipment or otherspantation services to meet our commitments tocogtomers

* Expense management—We may not be able to apprelyradjust our expenses to changing market dem&wdsonnel is our
largest expense. In order to maintain high variigtih our business model, it is necessary to adjtaffing levels to changing
market demands. In periods of rapid change, itagendifficult to match our staffing level to ourdiness needs. In addition, we
have other variable expenses that are fixed fare@ of time, and we may not be able to adequatejyst them in a period of
rapid change in market demai

» Instability of financial markets and low intereates—The current interest rate environment hasftigntly reduced our
investment income and may continue to do so irfuhee.

Higher carrier prices may result in decreased net@venue margin.Carriers can be expected to charge higher priaaaiket conditions
warrant, or to cover higher operating expenses.r@turevenues and income from operations may deetiéae are unable to increase our
pricing to our customers. Increased demand foktoad services and pending changes in regulatiansreduce available capacity and
increase carrier pricing.

Changing fuel costs may have an impact on our neevenue marginsln our truckload transportation business, whicthéslargest source
of our net revenues, rising fuel prices may reisuét decreased net revenue margin. While our diffepricing arrangements with customers
and contracted carriers make it very difficult teasure the precise impact, we believe that fugbeassentially act as a pass-through cost to
our business. In times of higher fuel prices, cetrrevenue margin percentage declines.

We depend upon others to provide equipment and seices.We do not own or control the transportation assetsdeliver our customers’
freight, and we do not employ the people direatlyoived in delivering the
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freight. We are dependent on independent thirdgsard provide truck, rail, ocean, and air serviaed to report certain events to us, incluc
delivery information and freight claims. This rel@e could cause delays in reporting certain evéamtkjding recognizing revenue and claims.
If we are unable to secure sufficient equipmerdtber transportation services to meet our commiteygnour customers, our operating res
could be materially and adversely affected, andcoistomers could switch to our competitors templgrar permanently. Many of these risks
are beyond our control including:

* equipment shortages in the transportation induptgticularly among contracted truckload carri

* interruptions in service or stoppages in transpiorteas a result of labor disput

» changes in regulations impacting transportatiod,

e unanticipated changes in transportation r¢
We have international operationsWe provide services within and between continentamincreasing basis. Our business outside of the
United States is subject to various risks, inclgdin

» changes in economic and political conditions angawnernmental policie:

« changes in and compliance with international anudektic laws and regulatior

» wars, civil unrest, acts of terrorism, and othenftots,

* natural disaster:

» changes in tariffs, trade restrictions, trade agesgs, and taxation

» difficulties in managing or overseeing foreign ag@&ns and agent

» limitations on the repatriation of funds becausé&ogign exchange control

» different liability standards, ar

» intellectual property laws of countries which dad pootect our rights in our intellectual propetitygluding, but not limited to, our

proprietary information systems, to the same exasrihe laws of the United Stat

The occurrence or consequences of any of thesersactay restrict our ability to operate in the aféel region and/or decrease the profitak
of our operations in that region.

As we expand our business in foreign countriesywilleexpose the company to increased risk of lwesfforeign currency fluctuations and
exchange controls as well as longer accounts raibks\payment cycles. We have limited control otese risks, and if we do not correctly
anticipate changes in international economic anditiged conditions, we may not alter our businesaaqtices in time to avoid adverse effects.

Our ability to appropriately staff and retain employees is important to our variable cost modelOur continued success depends upon our
ability to attract and retain a large group of matéed salespersons and other logistics professiolmabrder to maintain high variability in our
business model, it is necessary to adjust stafémgls to changing market demands. In periodsmifirehange, it is more difficult to match

our staffing level to our business needs. We caguatantee that we will be able to continue to hird retain a sufficient number of qualified
personnel. Because of our comprehensive emplogagrtg program, our employees are attractive tarfyggtnew and existing competitors.
Continued success depends in large part on olityabildevelop successful employees into managers.

We face substantial industry competition Competition in the transportation services indugrintense and broad-based. We compete
against logistics companies as well as transportairoviders that own their own equipment, thirdp#&reight brokers, internet matching
services, internet freight brokers, and carrieferofg
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logistics services. We also compete against catrigiernal sales forces. In addition, customerslwéng in-house some of the services we
provide to them. We often buy and sell transpastatiervices from and to many of our competitorstdased competition could reduce our
market opportunity and create downward pressurfeedght rates, and continued rate pressure mayraéhyeaffect our net revenue and
income from operations.

We are reliant on technology to operate our businesWe have internally developed the majority of ouemgting systems. Our continued
success is dependent on our systems continuinget@te and to meet the changing needs of our cessoiWe are reliant on our technology
staff and vendors to successfully implement chatgesd maintain our operating systems in an efficmanner. Computer viruses could
cause an interruption to the availability of oustgyns. Unauthorized access to our systems wittcioad intent could result in the theft of
proprietary information and in systems outagesuAplanned systems outage or unauthorized access 8ystems could materially and
adversely affect our business.

Because we manage our business on a decentralizexdbis, our operations may be materially adversely &fcted by inconsistent
management practicesWWe manage our business on a decentralized basigytihia network of branch offices throughout Northekica,
Europe, Asia, South America, Australia, and the d¥édEast, supported by executives and servicex@ntial corporate office, with branch
management retaining responsibility for day-to-dpgrations, profitability, personnel decisions, ginewth of the business in their branch,
and adherence to applicable local laws. Our deafired operating strategy can make it difficult fisrto implement strategic decisions and
coordinated procedures throughout our global ofmeraitIn addition, some of our branches operath mianagement, sales, and support
personnel that may be insufficient to support ghointtheir respective branch without significanbttal oversight and coordination. Our
decentralized operating strategy could result @gomsistent management practices and materialladadrsely affect our overall profitability
and expose us to litigation.

Our earnings may be affected by seasonal changesthre transportation industry. Results of operations for our industry generallgvgla
seasonal pattern as customers reduce shipmentg@umil after the winter holiday season. In receats, our operating income and earnings
have been lower in the first quarter than in theeothree quarters. Although seasonal changegitrdhsportation industry have not had a
significant impact on our cash flow or results peaations, we expect this trend to continue andavenot guarantee that it will not adversely
impact us in the future.

We are subject to claims arising from our transporation operations.We use the services of thousands of transportatiomanies in
connection with our transportation operations. Ftone to time, the drivers employed and engagethbycarriers we contract with are
involved in accidents which may result in serioesspnal injuries. The resulting types and/or am®ohtdamages may be excluded by or
exceed the amount of insurance coverage maintbiynéiae contracted carrier. Although these driveesrmt our employees and all of these
drivers are employees, owner-operators, or indegr@ncbntractors working for carriers, from timetitoe, claims may be asserted against us
for their actions, or for our actions in retainithgm. Claims against us may exceed the amountrdgheurance coverage, or may not be
covered by insurance at all. In addition, our audbite liability policy has a retention of $3 miltigper incident for 2008, and $5 million per
incident in 2009, 2010, and 2011. A material insee the frequency or severity of accidents, ligbclaims or workers’ compensation
claims, or unfavorable resolutions of claims comlaterially and adversely affect our operating rssuih addition, significant increases in
insurance costs or the inability to purchase insteaas a result of these claims could reduce aiitgility.

Our Sourcing business is dependent upon the suppind price of fresh produce.The supply and price of fresh produce is affectgd b
weather and growing conditions (such as drougbkgdts, and disease) and other conditions over widchave no control. Commodity prices
can be affected by shortages or overproductioreamaften highly volatile. If we are unable to secfresh produce to meet our commitments
to our customers, our

17



Table of Contents

operating results could be materially and advera#fgcted, and our customers could switch to ounetitors temporarily or permanently.

Sourcing and reselling fresh produce exposes us possible product liability. Agricultural chemicals used on fresh produce alges to
various approvals, and the commaodities themselresubject to regulations on cleanliness and canion. Product recalls in the produce
industry have been caused by concern about paticbhemicals and alleged contamination, often fegath lawsuits brought by consumers of
allegedly affected produce. Because we sell produeanay face claims for a variety of damagesmgigiom the sale which may include
potentially uninsured consequential damages. Widlare insured for up to $201 million in 2009, 2040d 2011 for product liability claims,
settlement of class action claims is often costhd we cannot guarantee that our liability coveraijebe adequate and will continue to be
available. If we have to recall produce, we maydagiired to bear the cost of repurchasing, trarisprand destroying any allegedly
contaminated product, as well as consequential dasjavhich our insurance does not cover. Any regadllegation of contamination could
affect our reputation, particularly of our propéet and/or licensed branded produce programs. desgo spoilage (including the need for
disposal) is also a routine part of the sourcingifess.

Our business depends upon compliance with numeroggmvernment regulations.We are licensed by the U.S. Department of
Transportation as a broker authorized to arrangéhtransportation of general commodities by maghicle. We must comply with certain
insurance and surety bond requirements to acfisrcdpacity. We are also licensed by the Federaitii Commission as an ocean freight
forwarder, which requires us to maintain a NVOC@dand by the Transportation Security Administrats an independent air carrier. We
are also licensed by the Bureau of U.S. Customs$Bander Protection. We source fresh produce undieease issued by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture. Our failure to complytivihe laws and regulations applicable to enthiglsling these licenses could materially
and adversely affect our results of operationsnarfcial condition.

Legislative or regulatory changes can affect trenemics of the transportation industry by requiratgnges in operating practices or
influencing the demand for, and the cost of prawglitransportation services. As part of our logsservices, we operate leased warehouse
facilities. Our operations at these facilities irdé both warehousing and distribution services veamare subject to various federal and state
environmental, work safety, and hazardous materggjalations. We may experience an increase inatipgrcosts, such as costs for security,
as a result of governmental regulations that haenland will be adopted in response to terroristities and potential terrorist activities. No
assurances can be given that we will be able ts {hese increased costs on to our customers fiottmeof rate increases or surcharges.

Department of Homeland Security regulations apple#o our customers who import goods into the éthibtates and our contracted ocean
carriers can impact our ability to provide andfecaive services with and from these parties. Eefoent measures related to violations of
these regulations can slow and or prevent the elgliof shipments, which may negatively impact goerations.

We cannot predict what impact future regulationy imave on our business. Our failure to maintairuitegl permits or licenses, or to comply
with applicable regulations, could result in suhtitd fines or revocation of our operating pernaital licenses.

We derive a significant portion of our total revenies and net revenues from our largest customer®ur top 100 customers comprise
approximately 33 percent of our consolidated toggenues and 28 percent of consolidated net rege@ue largest customer comprises
approximately five percent of our consolidated ltoet@enues and three percent of our consolidatedenenues. The sudden loss of many of
our major clients could materially and adversefgetfour operating results.
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We may be unable to identify or complete suitableauisitions and investmentsWe may acquire or make investments in complementary
businesses, products, services, or technologiesaneot guarantee that we will be able to idertifitable acquisitions or investment
candidates. Even if we identify suitable candidatescannot guarantee that we will make acquisstioninvestments on commercially
acceptable terms, if at all. If we acquire a conypave may have difficulty integrating its businesggroducts, services, technologies, and
personnel into our operations. Acquired companiegperations may have unexpected liabilities, ardway face challenges in retaining
significant customers of acquired companies. Thig§eulties could disrupt our ongoing businessstdict our management and workforce,
increase our expenses, and adversely affect oultsed operations. In addition, we may incur debbe required to issue equity securities to
pay for future acquisitions or investments. Thaedxe of any equity securities could be dilutiveto stockholders.

Our growth and profitability may not continue, which may result in a decrease in our stock priceHistorically, our long-term growth
objective has been 15 percent for net revenuesatipg income, and earnings per share. There cauo lassurance that our long-term growth
objective will be achieved or that we will be abbeeffectively adapt our management, administrativel operational systems to respond to
any future growth. Future changes in and expansia@ur business, or changes in economic or polidoaditions, could adversely affect our
operating margins. Slower or less profitable groattihosses could adversely affect our stock price.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters is in Eden Prairie, BBota. The total square footage of our four bugdiim Eden Prairie is 343,000. This total
includes our data center of approximately 18,00fasg feet and 110,000 square feet used for brametations.
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Most of our branch offices are leased from thirdipa under leases with initial terms ranging fritmee to fifteen years. Our office locations
range in space from 1,000 to 153,000 square féetfdllowing table lists our largest office locatf

Approximate

Location Square Feet
Eden Prairie, MM 153,00(
Eden Prairie, MNY 105,00(
Chicago, IL® 80,00(
Eden Prairie, MM 67,00(
Atlanta, GA 27,00(
Elk Grove Village, IL 25,00(
Chicago, IL 21,00(
Eden Prairie, MNY 18,00¢
Woodridge, IL 17,00(
Monterrey, CA 16,00(
Fort Worth, TX 15,00(
Oklahoma City, Ok 15,00(
Coralville, 1A 14,00(
Phoenix, AZ 14,00(
Hong Kong 13,00(
Madison, WI 12,00¢(
Kansas City, K¢ 12,00(
Boca Raton, Fl 12,00(
Cordova, TN 12,00(
Lisle, IL 12,00¢(
Sartell, MN 11,00¢(
Chicago, IL 11,00¢(
Fishers, IN 11,00¢

We also own or lease approximately 740,000 squeeedf warehouse space throughout the United StBbesfollowing table lists our largest
warehouses:

Approximate

Location Square Feet
Long Beach, C# 114,00(
Elk Grove Village, IL 106,00(
Vancouver, WA 79,00(
Plant City, FL® 64,00(
Miramar, FL 57,00(
Bethlehem, P£ 55,00(
Rochester, NY 54,00(
Cobden, IL® 52,00(
Edinburg, TX 48,00(
Laredo, TX 47,00(
Lemont, IL 45,00(

(1) These properties are owned. All other propertighéntables above are leased from third pat

We consider our current office spaces and warehfawd@ies adequate for our current level of opienas. We have not had difficulty in
obtaining sufficient office space and believe we menew existing leases or relocate branches toafiéves as leases expire.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On March 20, 2009, at the conclusion of a tridllinois State Court, Twelfth Judicial Circuit, @it Court of Will County, a jury entered a
verdict of $23.75 million against us, a federallfteorized motor carrier with which we contractedd ¢he motor carrier’s driver. The award
was entered in favor of three named plaintiffsdaiing a consolidated trial, stemming from an acetdbat occurred on April 1, 2004. The

motor carrier and the driver both admitted thahattime of the accident the driver was actingraagent for the motor carrier, and that the
load was being transported according to the tefnesiocontract with the motor carrier. Our contrelgarly defined the motor carrier as an

independent contractor. The verdict has the etiehblding us vicariously liable for the damagesszd by the admitted negligence of the

motor carrier and its driver. There were no clatheg our selection or retention of the motor cawas negligent.

Given our prior experience with claims of this matuve believe the court erred in allowing thesgnas to be considered by a jury. As a
result, we are vigorously pursuing all availablgadleavenues by which we may obtain relief fromvbaldict. We have sought relief from the
verdict in the Appellate Court of lllinois, Thirdidicial District. The appellate court heard orgjuanents in this case on January 19, 2011 and
a decision is expected to be issued during 2011.

Under the terms of the insurance program which agih place in 2004, we would be responsible ferfitst $5.0 million of claims of this
nature plus post judgment interest on that amd@extause there are multiple potential outcomes, mémhich are reasonably possible, but
none of which we believe is probable, we have aobrded a liability for this claim at this time.

We are not subject to any other pending or threatditigation other than routine litigation arisiimgthe ordinary course of our business
operations, none of which is currently expectelliadwee a material adverse effect on our financiatité@m, results of operations, or cash flo

ITEM 4. REMOVED and RESERVED

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND I SSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Common Stock began trading on The NASDAQ Natlidarket under the symbol “CHRW” on October 15919
Quarterly market information can be found in Paritém 8. Financial Statements and Supplementatg[Note 9.

On February 22, 2011, the closing sales price Ipgresof our Common Stock as quoted on the NASDAGoNal Market was $71.71 per
share. On February 22, 2011, there were approxiya®® holders of record and approximately 67,960djicial owners of our Common
Stock.

We declared quarterly dividends during 2009 foaggregate of $0.97 per share and quarterly divisleinding 2010 for an aggregate of
$1.04. We have declared a quarterly dividend 02%@er share payable to shareholders of recorfl sbouary 10, 2011, payable on April 1,
2011. Our declaration of dividends is subject ®discretion of the Board of Directors. Any deteration as to the payment of dividends will
depend upon our results of operations, capitaliremuents and financial condition, and such othetdig as the Board of Directors may deem
relevant. Accordingly, there can be no assuranaettie Board of Directors will declare or contirtagpay dividends on the shares of Comi
Stock in the future.
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During the third quarter of 2009, the C.H. Robin8ward of Directors authorized management to rdpase an additional 10,000,000
shares. We are currently purchasing shares undeadthorization. These repurchases are expectagtaeqlace over multiple years. We
intend to fund any future repurchases with intdyngénerated funds.

The following table provides information about camy purchases during the quarter ended Decemb@030, of equity securities that are
registered by the company pursuant to Section 1BeoExchange Act:

Total Number of Maximum Number Of
Shares (or Units)
Total Number Average Price Purchased as Part ¢ Shares (or Units)
That May Yet Be
of Shares Paid Per Publicly Announced Purchased Under The
(or Units) Share
Period Purchased (or Unit) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs(?)
October 1, 201 October 31, 201 0 $ 0 0 9,149,74!
November 1, 201- November 30,
2010 263,58 72.0¢ 263,58 8,886,16!
December 1, 2010 - December 3
2010 281,00( 78.3( 281,00( 8,605,16!
Fourth quarter 201 544 58( $ 75.2¢ 544 58( 8,605,16!

(1) During the third quarter of 2009, the C.H. Rudain Board of Directors authorized managementgarahase an additional 10,000,000
shares. We are currently purchasing shares und&@0®9 authorization of 10,000,000 shares. As aebwer 31, 2010, there were
8,605,169 shares remaining under the 2009 authionza hese repurchases are expected to take pleremultiple years
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The following graph compares the cumulative fivewymtal return of holders of C.H. Robinson Worldesi Inc.’s Common Stock with the
cumulative total returns of the S&P 500 index, 8ESDAQ Transportation index, and the S&P Midcap #tifex. The graph tracks the
performance of a $100 investment in our CommonlSamd in each index (witthe reinvestment of all dividends) from DecemberZI05 tc
December 31, 2010.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN *
Among C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. The S&P 500drd
The S&P Midcap 400 Index and The NASDAQ Transpatatndex

5250

£200

5150

5100

£50

50
1208 12106 1207 1208 1209 1210

—&— C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. -~ — S&P 500

<es@e-- S&P Midcap 400 e MASDAQ Transportation

*$100 invested on 12/31/05 in stock or index, ncluding reinvestmant of dividends,
Fiscal yaar ending December 31

Copyrighs 2011 S&P, a division of Tha MceGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved

12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10

C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. 100.0C 111.8¢ 150.2¢ 155.3¢ 169.0¢ 234.6¢
S&P 500 100.0C 115.8( 122.1¢ 76.9¢ 97.37  111.9¢
S&P Midcap 400 100.0C 110.3: 119.1: 75.9¢ 104.3¢ 132.1¢
NASDAQ Transportation 100.0C 11157 117.3¢ 88.9( 91.1¢ 117.0:

The stock price performance included in this gragphot necessarily indicative of future stock pnegformance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

This table includes selected financial data forl#s five years (amounts in thousands, excepsipare amounts and operating data for
branches and employees). This financial data shmeilead together with our consolidated finanditiesnents and related notes,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations, and other fiterdata appearing elsewhere in this
report.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Year Ended December 31, 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Total revenue $9,274,30! $7,577,18 $8,578,61. $7,316,22. $6,556,19.
Net revenue 1,467,97 1,381,95 1,374,96. 1,243,77 1,082,54.
Income from operatior 622,86( 584,81 571,58t 509,68: 417,84!
Net income 387,02t 360,83( 359,17 324,26 266,92!
Net income per shai
Basic $ 2.3t $ 2.1¢ $ 2.12 $ 1.9C $ 1.5¢
Diluted $ 2.3¢ $ 2.1 $ 2.0¢ $ 1.8¢€ $ 1.5¢2
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (in
thousands
Basic 164,90¢ 167,69! 169,05t 170,49: 170,88t
Diluted 165,97. 169,19: 172,73 174,04( 174,78
Dividends per shar $ 1.04 $ 97 $ .9C $ 7€ $ .57

BALANCE SHEET DATA
As of December 31,

Working capital $ 710,16: $ 575,46. $ 650,21 $ 631,53 $ 569,19¢
Total asset 1,995,69' 1,834,24: 1,815,72. 1,811,30 1,631,69:
Total lon¢-term debt — — — — —
Stockholder’ investmen 1,204,06! 1,079,90! 1,107,22 1,042,24 943,72:
OPERATING DATA

Branches 231 23t 22¢ 21¢ 214
Employees 7,62¢ 7,347 7,961 7,332 6,76¢
Average net revenues per emplo® $ 19¢€ $ 184 $ 17¢ $ 177 $ 172

(1) Management uses net revenues per employekegsmerformance to analyze our productivity, todkenark the financial performance
of our branches, and to analyze impacts of teclyyodmd other investments in our busint
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table illustrates our net revenue gias by services and products:

For the years ended December 31, 2010 2009 2008
Transportatior 16.8% 20.2% 17.(%
Sourcing 8.5 8.2 8.C
Information Service: 100.( 100.( 100.(
Total 15.8% 18.2% 16.(%
The following table summarizes our net revenuesdsyice line:
For the years ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 Change 2008 Change
Net revenues
Transportatior
Truck $1,076,24 $1,040,70: 3.4%  $1,030,07! 1.C%
Intermodal 36,55( 35,24¢ 3.7 43,61¢ -19.2
Ocear 60,76: 54,18¢ 12.1 62,09 -12.7
Air 42,31t 32,66: 29.€ 35,39( -7.7
Other Logistics Service 57,25¢ 44,78 27.¢ 41,40" 8.2
Total Transportatiol 1,273,12! 1,207,58. 5.4 1,212,57 -04
Sourcing 139,37 128,58: 8.4 111,63« 15.2
Information Service 55,47: 45,79t 21.1 50,75( -9.8
Total $1,467,97 $1,381,95! 6.2%  $1,374,96. 0.5%
The following table represents certain statemehtgperations data, shown as percentages of ouenenues:
For the years ended December 31, 2010 2009 2008
Net revenue: 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Operating expense
Personnel expens 43.1 43.2 43.¢
Other selling, general, and administrative expe 14.t 14.t 14.€
Total operating expens 57.€ 57.7 58.4
Income from operatior 42.4 42.2 41.€
Investment and other incon 0.1 0.2 0.t
Income before provision for income tay 42.F 42.F 42.1
Provision for income taxe 16.1 16.4 16.C
Net income 26.4% 26.1% 26.1%
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OVERVIEW

Our company. We are a global provider of multimodal transpodatservices and logistics solutions, operatingufghoa network of branch
offices in North America, Europe, Asia, South AncatiAustralia, and the Middle East. We do not olenttansportation equipment that is
used to transport our customers’ freight. We woithapproximately 49,000 transportation companiesldwide, and through those
relationships we select and hire the appropriatesfportation providers to meet our customers’ neslan integral part of our transportation
services, we provide a wide range of value addgidtios services, such as supply chain analysgHtt consolidation, core carrier program
management, and information reporting.

In addition to multimodal transportation serviceg, also offer fresh produce sourcing and fee-bafedmation services. Our Sourcing
business is the buying, selling, and marketingedt produce. We purchase fresh produce througheiutork of produce suppliers and se
to retail grocers and restaurant chains, produageshlers and foodservice providers. In some cageg)so arrange the transportation of the
produce we sell through our relationships with sgdexed transportation companies. Those revenuesegorted as Transportation revenues.
Our Information Services business is our subsidi¥r€hek, which provides a variety of managemeut lausiness intelligence services to
motor carrier companies and to fuel distributodso3e services include funds transfer, fuel purclgasind online expense management.

Our business modelWe are a service company. We act primarily to aaldesand expertise in the procurement and execafion
transportation and logistics, including sourcingpodduce products for our customers. Our totalmaes represent the total dollar value of
services and goods we sell to our customers. Querenues are our total revenues less purchasesbiortation and related services,
including contracted motor carrier, rail, oceam, and other costs, and the purchase price anitesmelated to the products we source. Our
net revenues are the primary indicator of our ghib source, add value, and sell services andymtsdhat are provided by third parties, and
we consider them to be our primary performance oreasent. Accordingly, the discussion of our resafteperations below focuses on the
changes in our net revenues.

We keep our business model as variable as pogsibléow us to be flexible and adapt to changingneenic and industry conditions. We sell
transportation services and produce to our custemih varied pricing arrangements. Some pricesanemitted to for a period of time,
subject to certain terms and conditions, and soficegpare set on a spotarket basis. We buy most of our transportatioraceyp and produc
on a spot-market basis. Because of this our nehrgy per transaction tends to increase in times were is excess supply and decrease in
times when demand is strong relative to supply.af§e keep our personnel and other operating expexsseariable as possible.
Compensation is performance-oriented and, for rmogiloyees in the branch network, based on thetahdlity of their individual branch
office.

In addition, we do not have pre-committed targetsheadcount. Our personnel decisions are decaemlalOur branch managers determine
the appropriate number of employees for their effiovithin productivity guidelines, based on theanch’s volume of business. This helps
keep our personnel expense as variable as possthl¢he business.

Our branch network. Our branch network is a competitive advantage.d#ugj local customer and contract carrier relatigmshas been an
important part of our success, and our worldwidsvoek of offices supports our core strategy of sggwcustomers locally, nationally, and
globally. Our branch offices help us penetrate llotarkets, provide face-to-face service when negded recruit contract carriers. Our
branch network also gives us knowledge of localkeaconditions, which is important in the transpédn industry because it is so dynamic
and market-driven.

Our branches work together to complete transactiodscollectively meet the needs of our customfgeproximately 37 percent of our
truckload shipments are shared transactions bettuegrthes. For many of our significant customeati@hships, we coordinate our efforts in
one branch and rely on multiple branch locations
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to deliver specific geographic or modal needs.dditgon, our methodology of providing services &y similar across all branches. Our N
American branches have a common technology plattbanthey use to match customer needs with supgdigabilities, to collaborate with
other branch locations, and to utilize centraligadport resources to complete all facets of thesaation.

During 2010, we decreased the size of our branthark by four branches, to 231. We combined foamiches with existing branches. We
are planning limited branch openings during 201dcdise we usually open new offices with only twthoee employees, we do not expect
them to make a material contribution to our finahogsults in the first few years of their operatio

Our people.Because we are a service company, our continuexkssiés dependent on our ability to continue te aird retain talented,
productive people, and to properly align our headt@nd personnel expense with our business. Caddoeint grew by 281 employees
during 2010. Branch employees act as a team inshéds efforts, customer service, and operatidrssgnificant portion of our branch
employees’ compensation is performance-orienteskdan individual performance and the profitabitifitheir branch. We believe this
makes our sales employees more seruvitented, focused, and creative. In 2003, we implet®d a restricted stock program to better align
key employees with the interests of our sharehs|derd to motivate and retain them for the lonmtéFhese restricted stock awards vest
a five-year period based on the company’s earnyngwth, and have been awarded annually since 2003.

Our customers.In 2010, we worked with more than 36,000 customgosfrom approximately 35,000 in 2009. We work watkvide variety

of companies, ranging in size from Fortune 100 camigs to small family businesses, in many diffefedtistries. Our customer base is very
diverse. Our top 100 customers represented appataiyn33 percent of our total revenues and appratéiy 28 percent of our net revenues.
Our largest customer was approximately five peroéour total revenues and approximately threeqrgrof our total net revenues.

Our contracted carriers. Our contracted carrier base includes motor catriaisoads (primarily intermodal service providemir freight,
and ocean carriers. In 2010, our carrier base wpaimately 49,000, up from approximately 47,00@R009. Motor carriers that had fewer
than 100 tractors transported approximately 83guerof our truckload shipments in 2010. In our B@ortation business, no single contra
carrier represents more than approximately onegpéif our contracted carrier capacity.

Our goals. Since we became a publicly-traded company in 18@i7Jong-term compounded annual growth target leesn 4.5 percent for net
revenues, income from operations, and earningstme. Although there have been periods where we ihat achieved these goals, since
1997 we have exceeded this compounded growth gadl ihree categories. Our expectation is that tiwee, we will continue to achieve our
long-term target of 15 percent growth, but thatwilhave periods in which we exceed that goal padods in which we fall short. We
expect to reach our long-term growth primarily thgh internal growth but acquisitions that fit owowth criteria and culture may also
augment our growth.

During 2010, our consolidated total revenues irsede22.4 percent due primarily to volume incre@sedl of our modes of transportation ¢
increasing transportation rates. Transportatioesratcreased primarily due to a rise in fuel priged increased pricing to our customers. Our
pricing, exclusive of fuel, increased due to améase in overall transportation market demand ofestlly, our net revenue margins have
typically expanded and contracted based on fuebprand the balance between demand and overalysafgapacity.

Due to net revenue margin compression, we did claeae our long-term growth goal of 15 percent ag2010. Our net revenues grew 6.2
percent to $1.5 billion. Our income from operatiomseased 6.5 percent to $622.9 million and olutelil earnings per share increased 9.4
percent to $2.33. During 2010, our net revenue mar@et revenues as a percentage of total reviedeeseased to 15.8 percent from 18.2
percent in 2009. Net revenue margins decreasedladge to higher transportation costs and higher firices, partially offset by
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increased pricing to our customers. While supply @amand variables continue to be volatile in nedstur services, we have much better
revenue growth momentum going into 2011 than wethadast few years

2010 COMPARED TO 2009

Total revenues and direct costsOur consolidated total revenues increased 22.4peme 2010 compared to 2009. Total Transportation
revenues increased 26.8 percent to $7.58 billid20itD from $5.98 billion in 2009. This increase wiaisen by higher volumes in all of our
transportation modes and increased pricing to ostoners, including the impacts of higher fuel so$otal purchased transportation serv
increased 32.2 percent in 2010 to $6.30 billiomfi$®4.77 billion in 2009. This increase was dueighér volumes in all of our transportation
modes and higher transportation costs, includiegripacts of higher fuel costs. Our Sourcing reeeinareased 5.7 percent to $1.64 billion
in 2010 from $1.56 billion in 2009. Purchased pretdisourced for resale increased 5.4 percent i 80$1.50 billion from $1.43 billion in
2009. These increases were primarily due to volgroaith, including our previously announced acqigsibf Rosemont Farms Corporation,
Inc. (“Rosemont”)Our Information Services revenue increased 21.¢qmeito $55.5 million in 2010 from $45.8 million 2009. The increas
was primarily due to an increase in transactiomsiaoreases in some fees that are impacted bypficss.

Net revenuesTotal Transportation net revenues increased 5depéto $1.27 billion in 2010 from $1.21 billion 2009. Our Transportation
net revenue margin decreased to 16.8 percent i 206n 20.2 percent in 2009 largely driven by higtiansportation costs and higher fuel
costs, partially offset by an increase in transgt@h pricing to our customers. While our differ@nicing arrangements with customers and
contract carriers make it very difficult to measthre precise impact, we believe that fuel costergsly act as a pashrough in our busines
Therefore, in times of higher fuel prices, our r@tenue margin percentage decreases as it didlit 20

Truck net revenues, which consist of truckload kesd-than-truckload (“LTL”") services, comprise appmately 73 percent of our total net
revenues. Our truck net revenues increased 3.€meie $1.08 billion in 2010 from $1.04 billion 2009. Truckload volumes increased 15.6
percent in 2010. Truckload net revenue margin dege in 2010 due to an increase in fuel pricesramrdased cost of capacity, offset
partially by increased pricing to our customersclialing the estimated impact of the change in foelaverage, our truckload rates increased
approximately five percent in 2010. Consistent vpilst periods of rising transportation demand,cost of capacity rose faster than our
customer rates. Excluding the estimated impadi@ichange in fuel, our cost of truckload capacityeased approximately nine percent.

During 2010, our LTL net revenues increased appnaxely 18 percent. The increase was driven primagilan increase in shipment
volumes, partially offset by increased cost of @ifyaOur revenue per transaction decreased sjigbtir LTL volumes increased
approximately 22 percent compared to 2009. Our h&trevenue margin in 2010 was down slightly coragdo 2009.

Our intermodal net revenue increase of 3.7 perwe$86.6 million in 2010 from $35.2 million in 20@@as driven largely by volume and
pricing increases, partially offset by lower magyi@ur intermodal net revenue margin declined ib02€bmpared to 2009 due to higher
transportation costs.

Our ocean transportation net revenues increasddpt?cent to $60.8 million in 2010 from $54.2 noilliin 2009 due primarily to significant
volume increases. We experienced a net revenuemdegline due to increased cost of capacity, wiielk partially offset by increased
pricing to our customers. Excluding our previoudiyclosed acquisition of Walker Logistics Oversetts (“Walker”) on June 12, 2009, our
ocean transportation net revenues would have iseteapproximately nine percent.

Our air transportation net revenues increase @ @ércent in 2010 was driven by increased volu@es.air net revenue margins decrease
2010 due to higher transportation costs, which paasially offset by increased
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pricing to our customers. Excluding our previoudisclosed acquisition of Walker, our air transpiiotanet revenues would have increased
approximately 28 percent.

Other logistics services net revenues consist piiynaf custom brokerage fees and transportationagament fees. The increase of 27.8
percent to $57.3 million in 2010 was driven prirhally increases in the transportation managemesinbss.

Sourcing net revenues increased 8.4 percent to.$h3dlion in 2010. This increase was driven priityaby volume growth and the
acquisition of Rosemont. Our net revenue margireiased to 8.5 percent in 2010 from 8.3 percen0@92Excluding the acquisition of
Rosemont, Sourcing net revenues decreased appttekyfige percent in 2010.

Information Services is comprised entirely of revemelated to our subsidiary, T-Chek. For 2010prdmiation Systems net revenues increased
21.1 percent to $55.5 million. The increase wagalriby increases in transactions and higher fueépras some of our merchant fees are
based on a percentage of the total sale amount.

Operating expensesOperating expenses increased 6.0 percent to $84i8idn in 2010 from $797.1 million in 2009. Thisas due to an
increase of 5.8 percent in personnel expensesraimtiease of 6.8 percent in other selling, genarad administrative expenses. As a
percentage of net revenues, operating expensesaded to 57.6 percent in 2010 compared to 57.2peirc 2009.

In 2010, our average headcount was nearly flat @etpto 2009. Personnel expenses related to duicted stock program and various other
incentive plans are designed to keep expenseshl@math changes in net revenues and profitabilitye growth in personnel expenses is
primarily related to these variable incentive pladt®ck based compensation expense increased &&npto $37.0 million in 2010 from
$21.3 million in 2009. Our personnel expenses pareentage of net revenue declined slightly in 2@143.1 percent from 43.2 percent in
20009.

In 2010, other selling, general, and administratixpenses increased 6.8 percent to $213.1 mili@DL0 from $199.6 million in 2009. The
increase in our selling, general, and administeagixpenses is primarily related to the acquisitiwsasompleted in 2009.

Income from operations.Income from operations increased 6.5 percent t@ $6@illion in 2010. Income from operations as ecpatage of
net revenues increased to 42.4 percent in 2010 4@ percent in 2009.

Investment and other incomelnvestment and other income decreased 44.8 pei@&it2 million in 2010 compared to $2.3 million2609.
Our investment income is down compared to 2009 gmiilgndue to the changes in the overall marketdgain high-quality, short-term
investments and the decrease in our average iblestsh balance throughout 2010 compared to 2009.

Provision for income taxesOur effective income tax rate was 38.0 percen2fifrO and 38.5 percent for 2009. The effective inedax rate
for both periods is greater than the statutory f@idecome tax rate primarily due to state incoapees, net of federal benefit.

Net income.Net income increased 7.3 percent to $387.0 miitio2010 from $360.8 million in 2009. Basic net ino® per share increased
percent to $2.35. Diluted net income per sharesimsed 9.4 percent to $2.33.
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2009 COMPARED TO 2008

Total revenues and direct costsOur consolidated total revenues decreased 11.¢mpeirc 2009 compared to 2008. Total Transportation
revenues declined 16.2 percent to $5.98 billioadA9 from $7.13 billion in 2008. Total purchasexhsportation services declined 19.4
percent in 2009 to $4.77 billion from $5.92 billion2008. These declines were driven by fallingég@ortation rates, due primarily to a
reduction in fuel prices and underlying rates. Bgr2009, a significant decline in overall transptian market demand due to the economic
recession impacted our volumes. Our Sourcing rexvémereased 11.2 percent to $1.56 billion in 2008nf$1.40 billion in 2008. Purchased
products sourced for resale increased 10.9 peirc@®09 to $1.43 billion from $1.29 billion in 200Bhese increases were primarily due to
volume growth, including our previously announceduasition of Rosemont. Our Information Servicegemue decreased 9.8 percent to $
million in 2009 from $50.8 million in 2008. The dease was driven by declines in transactions aolihds in some fees that are impacted by
fuel prices.

Net revenuesTotal Transportation net revenues decreased Océpeto $1.208 billion in 2009 from $1.212 billian2008. Our
Transportation net revenue margin increased to 2&@ent from 17.0 percent in 2008 largely drivgralilecline in fuel prices and a lower
cost of capacity. While our different pricing arg@ments with customers and contract carriers malkery difficult to measure the precise
impact, we believe that fuel costs essentiallyagca pass-through in our business. Thereforepiestiof lower fuel prices, our net revenue
margin percentage increases as it did in 2009. &\ cannot predict what our net revenue margifidowiin the future, during the first half
of 2009 our net revenue margins were at the highoéour historical range.

Truck net revenues, which consist of truckload Bl services, comprise approximately 75 percerawftotal net revenues. Our truck net
revenues increased 1.0 percent to $1.04 billic20®O from $1.03 billion in 2008. Truckload volumaecreased 0.8 percent in 2009, but year-
over-year growth improved as the year progressadti@ckload rates decreased approximately 16 perExcluding the estimated impact of
the change in fuel, on average, our truckload rd¢eseased approximately 5 percent in 2009. Trackleet revenue margin increased in 2009
due to a reduction in fuel prices and lower costagacity. Consistent with past periods of fallirgpsportation demand, our cost of capacity
fell faster than our customer rates. Excludinggbémated impact of the change in fuel, our codtwfkload capacity decreased
approximately 6 percent as carriers lowered tlaes.

During 2009, our LTL net revenues decreased sligfithe decrease was driven by price declines andrloevenue per transaction, largely
offset by an increase in shipment volumes. Priestired significantly due to the lower cost of faeld decreased underlying rates. Our
revenue per transaction also declined due to levegght per transaction. Our LTL volumes increasgpraximately 27 percent compared to
2008. Our LTL net revenue margin in 2009 was reédyi consistent with 2008.

Our intermodal net revenue decrease of 19.2 petoes5.2 million from $43.6 million in 2008 wasivin largely by price declines and
volume decreases. Net revenue margin was relatoaigistent with 2008.

Our ocean transportation net revenues decreaségéent to $54.2 million in 2009 due to price &otime declines. Excluding our
previously disclosed acquisitions of Transera imaéional Holdings, Ltd. (“Transera”) and Walkeryagean transportation net revenues
would have declined approximately 21 percent. leenue margin increased significantly in 2009 camgao 2008.

Our air transportation net revenues decrease qgfetdent in 2009 was driven by volume declinesmiick declines. Excluding our previou
disclosed acquisitions, our air transportationragenues would have decreased approximately 1®iperc

Other logistics services net revenues consist pifiynaf custom brokerage fees and transportationagament fees. The increase of 8.2
percent to $44.8 million in 2009 was driven prinhally increases in the transportation
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management business and by the acquisition oflatienal Trade & Commerce, Inc. (“ITC"), offset fially by a decrease in other customs
brokerage activity. Excluding the acquisition ofJ;Tour other logistics services net revenues irsa@approximately four percent in 2009.

Sourcing net revenues increased 15.2 percent t8.12illion in 2009. This increase was driven priityeby volume growth and the
acquisition of Rosemont. Our net revenue margireiased to 8.3 percent in 2009 from 8.0 percen0@82Excluding the acquisition of
Rosemont, Sourcing net revenues increased apprtetimrane percent in 2009.

Information Services is comprised entirely of revemgenerated by our subsidiary, T-Chek. For 208@yination Systems net revenues
declined 9.8 percent to $45.8 million. The decremas driven by declines in transactions and byideslin some fees that are impacted by
fuel prices.

Operating expensesOperating expenses decreased 0.8 percent to $78dh in 2009 from $803.4 million in 2008. Thisas due to a
decrease of 0.7 percent in personnel expenses @ect@ase of 1.0 percent in other selling, genanal administrative expenses. As a
percentage of net revenues, operating expensesaged to 57.7 percent in 2009 compared to 58.4peirc 2008.

Our compensation plans are designed to keep perkerpenses variable with changes in net revemgpafitability. In addition to our
variable compensation plans, our average headduuimg 2009 declined approximately three perceetr @008, which contributed to the
reduction in personnel expenses of 0.7 percentéfigealth insurance costs and severance pay éss#smexpense reduction related to the
headcount decline. Our personnel expenses as enpage of net revenue declined slightly in 200893@® percent from 43.8 percent in 2008.

In 2009, other selling, general, and administraixpenses decreased 1.0 percent to $199.6 mili@d09 from $201.6 million in 2008. We
had increases in some expenses, including progdardoubtful accounts and occupancy. Our occuparpense increase was due prime

to the completion of our data center in Eden RraMinnesota, and the locations we added throughisition. These increases were offset by
reductions in travel, entertainment, and otherrdisonary expenses.

Income from operations.Income from operations increased 2.3 percent td $5®illion in 2009. Income from operations as ecpatage of
net revenues increased to 42.3 percent in 2009 4rbé percent in 2008.

Investment and other incomelnvestment and other income decreased 66.9 pei@&2t3 million in 2008 compared to $6.8 million2608.
Our investment income is down significantly comphbt@ 2008 primarily due to the changes in the diverarket yields on high-quality, short-
term investments.

Provision for income taxesOur effective income tax rate was 38.5 percen2@9 and 37.9 percent for 2008. The effective inedax rate
for both periods is greater than the statutory f@ideacome tax rate primarily due to state incoapees, net of federal benefit.

Net income.Net income increased 0.5 percent to $360.8 miilio2009 from $359.2 million in 2008. Basic net ino® per share increased
percent to $2.15. Diluted net income per shareeged 2.4 percent to $2.13.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have historically generated substantial casin foperations, which has enabled us to fund our tirevhile paying cash dividends and
repurchasing stock. Cash and cash equivalentetb$898.6 million and $337.3 million as of Decem®&r2010 and 2009. Short and long-
term available-for-sale securities, consisting priify of highly liquid investments, totaled $9.3lhain and $51.3 million as of December 31,
2010 and 2009. Working capital at December 31, 20402009 was $710.2 million and $575.5 million.
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We prioritize our investments to grow the businessywe require some working capital and a relatigeilall amount of capital expenditure:
grow. We are continually looking for acquisitiomsredeploy our cash, but those acquisitions musufi culture and enhance our growth
opportunities. We continue to invest our cash wiflocus on principal preservation. Our currentregébearing cash and investments are ¢
primarily between municipal money markets and mipaicbonds. Our investment income is down compéuddst year due to the changes in
the overall market yields of high-quality, shortaeinvestments and a decline in our average inviestiash balance in 2010.

Cash flow from operating activities.We generated $344.8 million, $372.6 million, and®4 million of cash flow from operations in 2010,
2009, and 2008. During 2010, our cash flow fromrapens decreased 7.5 percent compared to a 7c8mtancrease in net income. The
primary factor that caused this decrease in 2019theincrease in our accounts receivables balate.0 percent to $1.0 billion in 2010
from $885.5 million in 2009, as a result of incredvolumes in late 2010 compared with 2009.

Cash used for investing activitiesWe generated $8.6 million of cash in 2010, usedB®Lkillion of cash in 2009, and generated $31.5
million cash in 2008 for investing activities. Qawesting activities consist primarily of cash p&id acquisitions, capital expenditures, and
investing in securities.

We used $28.7 million, $34.5 million, and $23.7lioil of net capital expenditures in 2010, 2009, 2068. We spent $28.7 million, $20.6
million, and $18.1 million in 2010, 2009, and 20@@marily for annual investments in information h@ology equipment to support our
operating systems, including the purchase and dprent of software. We spent $13.9 million and $Bilion in 2009 and 2008 on facilitir
on our new corporate campus in Eden Prairie, MN.

We used cash of $41.1 million and $59.7 milliondoguisitions in 2009 and 2008. On June 12, 20@%equired Walker; on July 7, 2009,
we acquired ITC; and on September 15, 2009, weiatjRosemont. The amount paid in 2008 includedZ&tllion related to the closing
one acquisition and $9.5 million related to earhymayments and holdbacks from prior year acquisétio

During 2010, we exited nearly all of our availalide-sale securities and invested in cash and casivaents which generated $42.4 million
of cash from investing activities. In 2009, we u$d@.5 million in net purchases and sales/matsritfeavailable-for-sale securities. During
2008, we exited nearly all of our available-foresabcurities and invested in cash and cash equotgaMhich generated $114.1 million of cash
from investing activities.

Cash used for financing activitiesWe used $289.1 million, $402.1 million, and $32&illion of cash flow for financing activities in 20,
2009, and 2008. This was primarily quarterly divide and share repurchases.

We used $168.9 million, $162.9 million, and $15miflion to pay cash dividends in 2010, 2009, an68&awith the increase in 2010 due to a
4 percent increase in our quarterly dividend reaenf$0.24 per share in 2009 to $0.25 per shar@102

We also used $151.1 million, $266.9 million, an@®3 million on share repurchases in 2010, 2008,2008. The decrease in 2010 was due
to a 51 percent decrease in the number of shgpascteased. We are currently purchasing shares uhe@009 authorization of 10,000,000
shares. As of December 31, 2010, there were appedgly 8,605,000 shares remaining under this aiztitton. These repurchases are
expected to take place over multiple years. Thebarrof shares we repurchase, if any, during fuberéods will vary based on our cash
position, potential uses of our cash, and markeditions.

We had 3.5 million Euros available under a linem@dit at an interest rate of Euribor plus 45 bpsisits. This discretionary line of credit was
closed on November 1, 2009.
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Assuming no change in our current business planagement believes that our available cash, togettierexpected future cash generated
from operations, will be sufficient to satisfy caumticipated needs for working capital, capital exgitures, and cash dividends in future
periods. We also believe we could obtain funds ufides of credit on short notice, if needed.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements include aotoaf the company and all majority-owned subsid&arThe preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principieserally accepted in the United States requir@sagement to make estimates and
assumptions. In certain circumstances, those egtingand assumptions can affect amounts reporteéng iaccompanying consolidated
financial statements and related footnotes. Inamiag our financial statements, we have made osir dstimates and judgments of certain
amounts included in the financial statements, givdoe consideration to materiality. We do not halithere is a great likelihood that
materially different amounts would be reported tedao the accounting policies described below. e\, application of these accounting
policies involves the exercise of judgment andafsgssumptions as to future uncertainties and,rasudt, actual results could differ from
these estimates. Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidaitgancial Statements includes a summary of gpgifsant accounting policies and
methods used in the preparation of our consolidéedicial statements. The following is a briefalission of our critical accounting policies
and estimates.

Revenue recognitionTotal revenues consist of the total dollar valugadds and services purchased from us by custoMetsevenues are
total revenues less the direct costs of transpontgproducts, and handling. We act principallyttes service provider for these transactions
and recognize revenue as these services are rdnafegeods are delivered. At that time, our oblimyad to the transactions are completed and
collection of receivables is reasonably assuredstNtansactions in our Transportation and Sourbumjnesses are recorded at the gross
amount we charge our customers for the serviceraddge and goods we sell. In these transactionsaneehe primary obligor, we have all
credit risk, we maintain substantially all riskdanrewards, we have discretion to select the supplied we have latitude in pricing decisions.

Additionally, in our Sourcing business, we takeslo$ inventory risk during shipment and have gelnerentory risk. Certain transactions in
customs brokerage, transportation management, lamdresactions in Information Services are recdrdethe net amount we charge our
customers for the service we provide because méthedactors stated above are not present.

Valuations for accounts receivableOur allowance for doubtful accounts is calculataeddal upon the aging of our receivables, our hisdbri
experience of uncollectible accounts, and any $pemistomer collection issues that we have idedifThe allowance of $30.9 million as of
December 31, 2010 increased compared to the allevain$30.7 million as of December 31, 2009. Weéselvel that the recorded allowance is
sufficient and appropriate based on our customieigatgends, the exposures we have identified, amdhistorical loss experience.

Goodwill. We manage and report our operations as one opgisgment. Our branches represent a series of ecenfsothat are aggregated
for the purpose of evaluating goodwill for impaimmen an enterprise-wide basis. In the case wherbave an acquisition that we feel has
not yet become integrated into our branch networkmonent, we will evaluate the impairment of anpdwill related to that specific
acquisition and its results. The fair value of émerprise-wide reporting unit substantially excetitt book value; therefore we have
determined that there is no indication of goodwilpairment as of December 31, 2010.

Stock-based compensationThe fair value of each share-based payment awastablished on the date of grant. For grantssificted
shares and restricted units, the fair value ishéisteed based on the market price on the dateeoftant, discounted for post-vesting holding
restrictions. The discounts have varied from 1Z@efrto 22 percent and are calculated using thekBSaholes option pricing model. Chan
in the measured stock

33



Table of Contents

price volatility and interest rates are the primaggson for changes in the discount. For grantgptibns, we use the Black-Scholes option
pricing model to estimate the fair value of shaasddl payment awards. The determination of thesédire of share-based awards is affected
by our stock price and a number of assumptiongditg expected volatility, expected life, risk-érinterest rate, and expected dividends.

DISCLOSURES ABOUT CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMME RCIAL CONTINGENCIES

The following table aggregates all contractual camments and commercial obligations, due by peribdt affect our financial condition and
liquidity position as of December 31, 2010 (dollarshousands):

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total
Contractual Obligation
Operating Lease® $31,39¢ $22,51: $18,84« $15,72¢ $11,767 $21,22: $121,46¢
Purchase Obligatior@ 5,951 3,20z 1,16¢€ — — — 10,32¢
Total $37,35: $25,71¢ $20,01( $15,72¢ $11,767 $21,22¢ $131,79«

(1) We have certain facilities and equipment under atireg leases
(2) Purchase obligations include agreements fatises that are enforceable and legally binding thiadl specify all significant terms. As of
December 31, 2010, such obligations include telenamcations services and maintenance contr

We have no long-term debt or capital lease obligeti Long-term liabilities consist of noncurremtame taxes payable, contingent purchase
price related to acquisitions, and the obligatioder our non-qualified deferred compensation dare to the uncertainty with respect to the
timing of future cash flows associated with ouragagnized tax benefits at December 31, 2010, wersable to make reasonably reliable
estimates of the period of cash settlement withrélspective taxing authority. Therefore, $10.7 iomllof unrecognized tax benefits have been
excluded from the contractual obligations tablev@b&ee Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statésifor a discussion on income taxes.
Our obligations for payment of contingent purchpsee related to acquisitions have been excludeah the table above as the timing and
exact amount of cash payment is uncertain. Thgatiin under our non-qualified deferred compensagtian has also been excluded from
the above table as the timing of cash paymentdeniain. We also enter into air and ocean freiglit groduce purchase contracts which are
all short-term in nature. These liabilities havemexcluded from the table as the amount of anly pagment is uncertain. As of

December 31, 2010, we did not have any off-balahest arrangements as defined in Item 303 (a)(4f(BEC Regulation S-K.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We had $407.9 million of cash and investments oodbwer 31, 2010, consisting of $398.6 million afttand cash equivalents and $9.3
million of available-for-sale securities. Althougtese investments are subject to the credit rigkefssuer, we manage our investment
portfolio to limit our exposure to any one issugubstantially all of the cash equivalents are manayket securities from treasury and tax
exempt money issuers. All of our available-for-ssgeurities are high-quality bonds and substaptéllare exempt from U.S. federal income
taxes. Because of the credit risk criteria of owestment policies and practices, the primary ntaikks associated with these investment:
interest rate and liquidity risks. A hypothetic@l0tbasis-point change in the interest rate woulchave a material effect on our earnings. We
do not use derivative financial instruments to nggnaterest rate risk or to speculate on futurengka in interest rates. A rise in interest rates
could negatively affect the fair value of our intreents. Market risk arising from changes in foredginrency exchange rates are not material
due to the size of our international operations.
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ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
CH Robinson Worldwide, Inc.
Eden Prairie, MN

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. and islidnses (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related cdasedl statements of operations, stockholders’ tnverst, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, ZDdNaudits also included the financial statemehedale listed in the Index at Item 15.
These financial statements and financial statesemdule are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the financial statementdiaadcial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetegresent fairly, in all material respects, tin@ricial position of C.H. Robinson
Worldwide, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December2B10 and 2009, and the results of their operatimuktheir cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20 @nformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statnt schedule, when considered in relation to #schconsolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all mategapects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2010, based on the criteria establighbddrnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report dateccMa, 2011, expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal cohtiver financial reporting.

b,_!,,ﬁpt if.m T o

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 1, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc.
Eden Prairie, MN

We have audited the internal control over finangéglorting of C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. and sidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2010, based on criteria establishédeémal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camijsgamanagement is responsible for maintainingatiffe internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifirecéiveness of internal control over financial oefing, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over FirerReporting. Our responsibility is to expressogmion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditideld obtaining an understanding of internal cordvar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etnaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considezeéssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvisi the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons penigrg similar functions, and effected by the compsufspard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting antet preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles. A company’s internatteol over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheartaintenance of records that, in reasonablel detaurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets ofdhgpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance thaactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adaace with generally accepted accounting princj@ad that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordanceawithorizations of management and directors of tmepany; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositioth&f company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods ateject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigat the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31, 2010,
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifribe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement sdeddied in the Index at Item 15 as of and forykar ended December 31, 2010, of the
Company and our report dated March 1, 2011 expdesmseinqualified opinion on those financial statete@nd financial statement schedule.

b,_!,,ﬁpt if.m T

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 1, 2011
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C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2010 2009
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 398,600 $ 337,30¢
Available-for-sale securitie 9,29( 48,31(
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accowht$30,945 and $30,6¢ 1,036,07! 885,54.
Deferred tax asst 5,46¢ 6,454
Prepaid expenses and otl 32,33 29,65¢
Total current assets 1,481,76! 1,307,26!
Property and equipme 233,23( 220,51¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (118,89) (102,820()
Net property and equipme 114,33: 117,69¢
Goodwill 359,11¢ 361,66t
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated anadioiz of $13,874 and $26,9- 13,49t 18,37:
Deferred tax ass: 7,83¢ 14,42:
Other asset 19,15! 14,82:
Total assets $1,995,69'  $1,834,24
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' INVESTMENT
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 567,96 $ 529,25
Outstanding check 59,60( 77,25¢
Accrued expense—
Compensation and prc-sharing contributiol 96,99 90,85¢
Income taxes and oth 47,05t 34,43t
Total current liabilities 771,60 731,80°
Noncurrent income taxes payal 10,66 10,54¢
Other long term liabilitie: 9,351 11,99t
Total liabilities 791,63 754,341
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder’ investment
Preferred stock, $ .10 par value, 20,000 shard®enéd; no shares issued or outstan 0 0
Common stock, $ .10 par value, 480,000 shares apébh 177,060 and 176,686 shares issued, 166,
and 167,098 outstandir 16,60t 16,71(
Additional paic-in capital 178,08 165,10
Retained earning 1,613,91. 1,402,30!
Accumulated other comprehensive | (6,425 (1,63¢)
Treasury stock at cost (11,012 and 9,% (598,11 (502,58¢)
Total stockholders’ investment 1,204,06! 1,079,901
Total liabilities and stockholders’ investment $1,995,69'  $1,834,24

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsi@tements.
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C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)
Revenues:
Transportatior
Sourcing
Information Service:
Total revenues

Costs and expenses:
Purchased transportation and related sen
Purchased products sourced for re:
Personnel expens
Other selling, general, and administrative expe
Total costs and expense
Income from operations
Investment and other incon
Income before provision for income taxe:
Provision for income taxe

Net income
Basic net income per shar:
Diluted net income per share
Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock awards

Diluted weighted average shares outstandin

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsi@tements.

For the year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
$7,575,65! $5,976,10: $7,129,61.
1,643,17. 1,555,29. 1,398,25

55,47 45,79¢ 50,75(
9,274,30! 7,577,18! 8,578,61.
6,302,53 4,768,52 5,917,03
1,503,79 1,426,711 1,286,61!

632,06 597,56¢ 601,82:

213,05: 199,58( 201,55!
8,651,44! 6,992,37! 8,007,02i

622,86( 584,81: 571,58t

1,242 2,25( 6,801

624,10: 587,06: 578,38

237,07¢ 226,23: 219,21(
$ 387,02 $ 360,83 $ 359,17
$ 2.3¢ $ 2.1 $ 2.12
$ 2.3¢ $ 2.1¢ $ 2.0¢

164,90¢ 167,69! 169,05¢

1,06: 1,49¢ 3,67
165,97. 169,19: 172,73
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C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT

(In thousands, except per share data)
Balance December 31, 2007
Net income
Other comprehensive incor-
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale securitie
Comprehensive inconm
Dividends declared, $.90 per sh:
Stock issued for employee benefit pli
Issuance of restricted sto
Stocl-based compensation expel
Excess tax benefit on deferred compensation andoge stock
plans
Repurchase of common sta
Balance December 31, 2008
Net income
Other comprehensive incor-
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Unrealized gain on availat-for-sale securitie
Comprehensive incon
Dividends declared, $.97 per sh:
Stock issued for employee benefit pli
Issuance of restricted sto
Stocl-based compensation expel
Excess tax benefit on deferred compensation andoge stock
plans
Repurchase of common st
Balance December 31, 2009
Net income
Other comprehensive incor-
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale securitie
Comprehensive incon
Dividends declared, $1.04 per sh
Stock issued for employee benefit pli
Issuance of restricted sto
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Excess tax benefit on deferred compensation andoge stock
plans
Repurchase of common sta
Balance December 31, 2010

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsi@tements.

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Comprehensive Treasury Stockholders’
Shares Paid-in Retained
Outstanding Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Investment
170,82: $17,08: $ 190,32( $1,002,96. $ 263 $(168,38() $ 1,042,24
359,17° 359,17°
1,904 1,90«
@ 2)
361,07¢
(154,71 (154,71
1,40¢ 141 (47,92%) 71,111 23,321
1,917 19z 3,33¢ 687 4,21¢
13 1 19,69t 154 19,85(
12,057 12,057
(3,720 (372) (200,479 (200,84¢)
170,43 17,04« 177,48t 1,207,42 2,16¢ (296,907) 1,107,22
360,83( 360,83(
(3,819 (3,81¢)
18 18
357,02¢
(165,957 (165,957
1,18¢ 11¢ (42,30%) 59,92 17,74:
55¢ 55 (55) 0
15 2 20,01: 787 20,80:
9,96¢ 9,96¢
(5,107 (510) (266,396 (266,901)
167,09¢ 16,71( 165,10- 1,402,30! (1,63€) (502,58 1,079,901
387,02t 387,02t
(4,779 (4,772
(15) (15
382,23
(175,42() (175,42()
1,06 10€ (36,687) 54,30¢ 17,73¢
37€ 38 (38) 0
19 2 36,61( 971 37,58:
13,09: 13,09:
(2,510 (252) (150,80¢) (151,05)
166,04¢ $16,60¢ $ 178,08 $1,613,91 $ (6,425  $(598,11) $ 1,204,06
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C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

For the year ended December 31,

2010

2009

2008

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for doubtful accoun
Stocl-based compensatic
Deferred income taxe

Loss on sale/disposal of ass
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Changes in operating elements, net of effects gdiattions:

Receivable!
Prepaid expenses and otl
Accounts payable and outstanding che

Accrued compensation and pr-sharing contributiol

Accrued income taxes and ott

Net cash provided by operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipm
Purchases and development of softw
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acqu
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie
Sales/maturities of availal-for-sale securitie
Restricted cas
Other

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activitie
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from stock issued for employee benefitg
Repayments of acquired line of cre
Repurchase of common sta
Cash dividend
Excess tax benefit on stc-based compensatic
Proceeds from sh¢-term borrowings
Payments on she«-term borrowings

Net cash used for financing activitie:
Effect of exchange rates on c

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of yei
Cash and cash equivalents, end of yei
Cash paid for income taxi
Cash paid for intere:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finhstsilements.

$ 387,02 $ 360,83 $ 359,17
29,36¢ 30,51 31,16«
13,92: 16,68¢ 14,32¢
37,04’ 21,26 20,80«

7,574 (630) 2,951
634 254 25¢
2,411 642 0
(164,119 (57,85%) 100,17:
1,88( (12,909 20
14,68¢ 21,85¢ (70,909)
6,65¢ (1,865) (6,792)
7,68¢ (6,227) (3,779)
344,77 372,57 447 57
(17,719 (30,36%) (23,03%)
(10,95¢) (4,102) (719)
0 (41,14%) (59,667)
(10,757) (52,437 (136,95
53,11 3,97¢ 251,07
(5,000) 0 0
(84) 18E 76¢
8,59¢ (123,88%) 31,48(
17,73: 17,74: 23,32
0 0 (9,389
(151,05) (266,90¢) (200,84¢)
(168,90%) (162,861 (151,195
13,00: 9,96¢ 12,05"
0 1,341 8,88¢

0 (1,341) (8,88¢)
(289,13 (402,069 (326,041
(2,94¢) (4,052 2,83¢
61,29¢ (157,431 155,85¢
337,30t 494,74 338,88t

$ 398,60 $ 337,30t $ 494,74

$ 203,39 $ 224,75( $ 202,24

$ 21 $  18¢ $ 426
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C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION. C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. and our subsidiafitise company,” “we,” “us,” or “our”) are a global
provider of multimodal transportation services #&glistics solutions through a network of 231 branéfices operating in North America,
Europe, Asia, South America, Australia, and thediédEast. The consolidated financial statementsidecthe accounts of C.H. Robinson
Worldwide, Inc. and our majority owned and conedlsubsidiaries. Our minority interests in subsid&are not significant. All
intercompany transactions and balances have beeimaled in the consolidated financial statements.

USE OF ESTIMATES. The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United

States requires management to make estimates suehptsons that affect the reported amounts of ass®l liabilities. We are also required

to disclose contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the repameolints of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Our ultimate results could diffierm those estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION. Total revenues consist of the total dollar valuga@dds and services purchased from us by custoidets.
revenues are total revenues less the direct cbst@nsportation, products, and handling. We attgipally as the service provider for these
transactions and recognize revenue as these seane@endered or goods are delivered. At that, timeobligations to the transactions are
completed and collection of receivables is reaslyradsured. Most transactions in our Transportadiath Sourcing businesses are recorded at
the gross amount we charge our customers for tiveceave provide and goods we sell. In these tretitaas, we are the primary obligor, we
have all credit risk, we maintain substantiallyradks and rewards, we have discretion to selectstipplier, and we have latitude in pricing
decisions. Additionally, in our Sourcing business, take loss of inventory risk during shipment &agle general inventory risk. Certain
transactions in customs brokerage, transportatiamagement, and all transactions in Information i8esvare recorded at the net amount we
charge our customers for the service we providalse many of the factors stated above are notrgrese

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS. Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowancarfaunts that may become
uncollectible in the future. We continuously monipayments from our customers and maintain a pi@vior uncollectible accounts based
upon our customer aging trends, historical loseggpce, and any specific customer collection isgbat we have identified.

FOREIGN CURRENCY. Most balance sheet accounts of foreign subsidianesranslated or remeasured at the current egehate as of
the end of the year. Statement of operations i@mgsranslated at average exchange rates during#tre The resulting translation adjustment
is recorded as a separate component of compreleeinsiome in our statement of stockholders’ investime

SEGMENT REPORTING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION. We operate in the transportation and logistics stigu We provide a
wide range of products and services to our custsred contract carriers including transportatianises, produce sourcing, freight
consolidation, contract warehousing, and infornraiervices. Each of these is a significant compbimeoptimizing logistics solutions for ¢
customers.

These services are performed throughout our brafficies by the same group of people, as an intedraffering for which our customers are
typically provided a single invoice. Our branchesrkwtogether to complete transactions and collettimeet the needs of our customers.
Approximately 37 percent of our truckload transasi are shared transactions between branches.dfy ofi our significant customer
relationships, we coordinate our efforts in onenbraand rely on multiple branch locations to delisgecific geographic or modal needs. In
addition, our methodology of providing servicesésy similar across all branches. Our North Ameribsanches have a common technology
platform that they use to match customer needs suifiplier
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capabilities, to collaborate with other branch tamss, and to utilize centralized support resoutoasomplete all facets of the transaction.
Accordingly, our chief operating decision makerlgras our business as a single segment relyingebrerenues and operating income for
each of our branch offices as the primary perforeaneasures.

The following table presents our total revenueséblaon location of the customer) for the years émdkcember 31 and our long-lived assets
as of December 31 by geographic regions (in thalsan

2010 2009 2008

Total revenue

United State: $8,298,32: $6,800,52: $7,702,14.

Other location: 975,98 776,66¢ 876,47
$9,274,30! $7,577,18' $8,578,61:

2010 2009 2008

Long-lived asset:

United State: $ 135,31: $ 136,74 $ 116,26¢

Other location: 11,66 14,14¢ 12,04
$ 146,97¢ $ 150,89( $ 128,31:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily okteempt and treasury money market funds and
municipal bonds with an original maturity of thnre®nths or less. The carrying amount approximatevéue due to the short maturity of 1
instruments.

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER. Prepaid expenses and other include such itemsegsigrrent, software maintenance contracts,
insurance premiums, other prepaid operating expease inventories, consisting primarily of prodacel related products held for resale.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. Property and equipment are recorded at cost. M@aniee and repair expenditures are charged to expens
as incurred. Depreciation is computed using thagtit-line method over the estimated lives of theets of 3 to 30 years. Amortization of
leasehold improvements is computed over the shoftidre lease term or the estimated useful livethefimprovements.

We recognized the following depreciation expensdhi{ousands):

2010 $20,39:
2009 19,29¢
2008 20,68¢

A summary of our property and equipment as of Ddim31 is as follows (in thousands):

2010 2009

Furniture, fixtures, and equipme $ 136,73: $ 127,07t
Buildings 55,52¢ 55,29(
Corporate aircral 9,18¢ 9,037
Leasehold improvemen 15,80( 14,08¢
Land 14,84 14,84:
Construction in progres 1,14t 18¢
Less accumulated depreciati (118,89) (102,82()
Net property and equipme $114,33: $ 117,69
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS. Goodwill is the difference between the purchaseepof a company and the fair market value of tripimed
company’s net identifiable assets. Other intangiisigets include customer lists, contract carsés,land non-competition agreements. These
intangible assets are being amortized using tlagsit-line method over their estimated lives, raggrom three to five years. Goodwill is not
amortized, but is tested for impairment using avalue approach. Goodwill is tested for impairmambually or more frequently if events
warrant. Intangible assets are evaluated for impait whenever events or changes in circumstandéesabe that the carrying amount may

be recoverable. See Note 3.

OTHER ASSETS. Other assets include such items as purchased @rdaily developed software, the investments rdltdeour nonqualifie
deferred compensation plan, and long-term avaHfiitsale securities. We amortize software usirggstiaight-line method over three years.
We recognized the following amortization expensputthased and internally developed software @usands):

2010 $4,047
2009 3,951
2008 4,25¢

A summary of our purchased and internally develog@tivare as of December 31 is as follows (in thods):

2010 2009
Purchased softwal $ 22,16 $ 20,59:
Internally developed softwa 16,88: 7,62¢
Less accumulated amortizati (24,719 (20,77
Net software $ 14,327 $ 7,44¢

INCOME TAXES. Income taxes are accounted for using the assdtability method. Under this method, deferred tasets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequencesnoporary differences between the carrying amourdsax bases of assets and liabilities
using enacted rates.

Annual tax provisions include amounts considerdticsent to pay assessments that may result froameRration of prior year tax returns;
however, the amount ultimately paid upon resolutibissues raised may differ from the amounts astru

The financial statement effects of an uncertaioiine tax position are recognized when it is moreljikhan not, based on the technical
merits, that the position will be sustained upoamination. Other tax contingencies are accruegvf@n it is probable that a liability to a
taxing authority has been incurred and the amofititeocontingency can be reasonably estimated.clihent portion of uncertain income tax
positions is included in “Income taxes and otherd ¢he long-term portion is included in “Noncurrémtome taxes payable” in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Provisions are made for taxes on undistributediegsrof foreign subsidiaries and related companies.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME. Comprehensive income includes any changes in thigyeaf an enterprise from transactions and other
events and circumstances from non-owner sourcestvwi@ucomponents of other comprehensive incomdaaeggn currency translation
adjustment and unrealized gains and losses froestments. They are presented on our consolidadgshstnts of stockholders’ investment.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION. The fair value of each share-based payment awastéblished on the date of grant. For grants of
restricted shares and restricted units, the fdirevs established based on the market price odateof the grant, discounted for post-vesting
holding restrictions. The discounts have varieanftt? percent to 22 percent and are calculated uBaglack-Scholes option pricing model.
Changes in measured stock volatility and interatstsrare the primary reason for changes in theuligc
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For grants of options, we use the Black-Scholemngiricing model to estimate the fair value ofrhbased payment awards. The
determination of the fair value of share-based dw affected by our stock price and a numbessfiaptions, including expected volatility,
expected life, risk-free interest rate, and expdigidends.

NOTE 2: AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

Our investments consist of investment-grade mabket@ebt securities. The majority of these investimare classified as shaerm based o
their highly liquid nature and because these sgesniepresent the investment of cash that is @viailfor current operations. They are
classified as available-for-sale and recordediavtdue. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we$td8 million and $51.3 million in
available-for-sale securities. Unrealized holdiaing and losses are recorded, net of any tax efie@ separate component of accumulated
other comprehensive income. Unrealized gains asgkEkon available-faale securities were not material as of Decembg2@10 and 200¢
The total realized gains and losses on sales dfblefor-sale securities were not material fag tlears ended December 31, 2010, 2009, anc
2008.

The fair value of available-for-sale debt secusiti December 31, 2010, by contractual maturitgh@wvn below (in thousands):

Estimated
Cost basit fair value
Due in one year or le: $ 9,211 $ 9,29(
Total $ 9,211 $ 9,29(
NOTE 3: GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The change in the carrying amount of goodwill isad®ws (in thousands):
2010 2009
Balance, beginning of ye. $361,66¢ $324,70:
Acquisitions 0 36,52
Translation (2,550 441
Balance, end of ye: $359,11¢ $361,66t¢

We complete an impairment test on goodwill annudilyis impairment test did not result in any impaént losses. There is no aggregate
goodwill impairment for any of the periods presehite our financial statements.

A summary of our other intangible assets, withtéidives, which include primarily non-competitiograements and customer relationships, as
of December 31 is as follows (in thousands):

2010 2009
Gross $ 25,56¢ $ 43,51¢
Accumulated amortizatio (13,879 (26,94))
Net $11,69¢ $ 16,57:
Other intangible assets, with indefinite lives, asefollows (in thousands):
2010 2009
Trademarks $1,80( $1,80(
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Amortization expense for other intangible assets:wa

2010 $4,92¢
2009 7,262
2008 6,22(

Intangible assets at December 31, 2010 will be tinsat over the next four years, and that expenas fsllows (in thousands):

2011 $ 3,81¢
2012 3,07¢
2013 2,86k
2014 1,93¢
Total $11,69¢

NOTE 4: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Accounting guidance on fair value measurementsdaiain financial assets and liabilities requitest tassets and liabilities carried at fair
value be classified and disclosed in one of thiefohg three categories:

» Level 1— Quoted market prices in active markets for idehtssets or liabilities
* Level 2— Observable mark-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are coratédd by market dat
» Level 3— Unobservable inputs reflecting the reporting e’s own assumptions or external inputs from inaatizekets.

A financial asset or liability’s classification vin the hierarchy is determined based on the loleest of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

The following table presents information as of Daber 31, 2010, about our financial assets andiliaisithat are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, according to the valuation techegqwe used to determine their fair values.

Total Fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
December 31, 201
Debt securitie- availabl«-for-sale:
State and municipal obligatiol $ O $ 8,37( $ 0 $ 8,37(
Corporate bond 0 92( 0 92(
Total assets at fair valt $ 0 $ 9,29( $ 0 $ 9,29(
Contingent purchase price related to acquisit 0 0 16,62: 16,62:
Total liabilities at fair value $ O $ 0 $16,62: $16,62:
Total Fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
December 31, 200
Debt securitie- available-for-sale:
State and municipal obligatiol $ O $50,21¢ $ 0 $50,21¢
Corporate bond 0 1,12( 0 1,12(
Total assets at fair valt $ 0 $51,33¢ $ 0 $51,33¢
Contingent purchase price related to acquisit 0 0 14,65¢ 14,65¢
Total liabilities at fair value $ 0 $ 0 $14,65¢ $14,65¢
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The estimated fair values of debt securities held\ailable-for-sale are based on other marketfda@omparable instruments and the
transactions related in establishing the pricesadasuring the fair value of the contingent paynfiabtlity, we used an income approach that
considers the expected future earnings of the emdjbiusinesses and the resulting contingent pagneistounted at a risk-adjusted rate.

The table below sets forth a reconciliation of baginning and ending Level 3 financial liabilityl&ace.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of peric $14,65¢ $ 0
Acquisition related contingent purchase pi 0 14,01*
Payments of contingent purchase pi (44= 0
Total unrealized losses included in earni 2,41C 64:
Balance, end of peric $16,62: $14,65¢

NOTE 5: INCOME TAXES

C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. and its 80 percemtimre) owned U.S. subsidiaries file a consoliddéeral income tax return. We file
unitary or separate state returns based on sliaig fequirements. With few exceptions, we arearker subject to audits of U.S. federal, <
and local, or non-U.S. income tax returns befoi@420

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoaininrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest penalties, is as follows (in
thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Unrecognized tax benefits, beginning of pel $7,77¢ $ 7,214 $ 7,622
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 1,891 1,82 1,63¢
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 1,56t — 15
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (1,549 (60) (1,519
Lapse in statute of limitatior (2,099 (1,297 0
Settlement: 0 (14) (549
Unrecognized tax benefits, end of the pel $ 7,59¢ $7,77¢ $ 7,214

As of December 31, 2010, we had $10.7 million aleaognized tax benefits and related interest andlpes, all of which would affect our
effective tax rate if recognized. We are not awadrany tax positions for which it is reasonably bk that the total amount of unrecognized
tax benefit will significantly increase or decreasé¢he next twelve months.

Income tax expense considers amounts which magéeed to cover exposures for open tax years. Wetexpect any material impact
related to open tax years; however, actual settiésmaay differ from amounts accrued.

We recognize interest and penalties related tortaiogax positions in the provision for incomeeaxDuring the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009, and 2008, we recognized approximately fillion, $0.7 million, and $0.7 million in intest and penalties. We had
approximately $3.1 million and $2.7 million for thayment of interest and penalties accrued witbimcarrent taxes payable as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009. These amounts araatotiéd in the reconciliation above.
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The components of the provision for income taxessist of the following for the years ended Decengfe(in thousands):

2010 2009 2008

Tax provision:
Federal $195,84: $191,15: $179,37¢
State 25,49: 25,43¢ 24,39t
Foreign 8,161 10,27: 12,82¢
229,50: 226,86: 216,59¢
Deferred provision (benefi 7,57¢ (630 2,614
Total provision $237,07¢ $226,23: $219,21(

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxesing the statutory federal income tax rate toeffective income tax rate for the years
ended December 31 is as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Federal statutory ra: 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 2.7 2.8 2.8
Stocl-based compensatic (0.0 (0.0 (0.2
Other 0.2 0.7 0.2

38.(% 38.5% 37.9%

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprisetheffollowing at December 31 (in thousands):

2010 2009
Deferred tax asset
Compensatiol $ 70,91t $ 60,14
Receivable:! 10,43( 8,612
Other 5,307 4,82z
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible asset (49,44°) (41,17¢)
Prepaid asse (8,997 (5,58))
Long-lived asset: (10,099 (3,759
Other (4,817) (2,186
Net deferred tax asse $ 13,30: $ 20,87¢

We have foreign net operating loss carryforwards witax effect of $3.3 million. A full valuatiorlewance has been established for thes:
operating loss carryforwards due to the uncertaifitie use of the tax benefit in future periods.

NOTE 6: CAPITAL STOCK AND STOCK AWARD PLANS

PREFERRED STOCK. Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes theimsce of 20,000,000 shares of Preferred Stockyglae $.10 per
share. There are no shares of Preferred Stoclaadisyg. The Preferred Stock may be issued by résplof our Board of Directors at any
time without any action of the stockholders. TheRbof Directors may issue the Preferred Stockni@ @ more series and fix the designation
and relative powers. These include voting powenefgpences, rights, qualifications, limitationsdamestrictions of each series. The issuan
any such series may have an adverse effect ongthts of holders of Common Stock and may impedectimpletion of a merger, tender

offer, or other takeover attempt.
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COMMON STOCK. Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes 480,000 shares of Common Stock, par value $.10 peesBabject to
the rights of Preferred Stock which may from tirogine be outstanding, holders of Common Stocleatiled to receive dividends out of
funds legally available, when and if declared ks Board of Directors, and to receive their sharthefnet assets of the company legally
available for distribution upon liquidation or distion.

For each share of Common Stock held, stockholdersritled to one vote on each matter to be votelly the stockholders, including the
election of directors. Holders of Common Stockroeentitled to cumulative voting; the holders afneathan 50 percent of the outstanding
Common Stock can elect all of any class of direcibthey choose to do so. The stockholders ddawe preemptive rights. All outstanding
shares of Common Stock are fully paid and nonaabéss

STOCK AWARD PLANS. Stock-based compensation cost is measured atdineé dgite based on the value of the award and éginézed as
expense as it vests. A summary of our total comgt@rsexpense recognized in our statements of tpasafor stock-based compensation is
as follows (in thousands):

2010 $37,047
2009 21,267
2008 20,80¢

Our 1997 Omnibus Stock Plan allows us to grantgegtock awards, including stock options at fa@rket value and restricted shares and
units, to our key employees and outside direc#drsiaximum of 28,000,000 shares can be granted uhdeplan; approximately 7,022,000
shares were available for stock awards as of DeeeBih 2010, which cover stock options and restictock awards. Awards that expire or
are cancelled without delivery of shares genetadlyome available for issuance under the plans.

The contractual lives of all options as originallanted are ten years. Options vested over a fdae-geriod from the date of grant, with none
vesting the first year and one quarter vesting gaeln after that. Recipients are able to exergiimes using a stock swap which results in a
new, fully-vested restoration option with a grarite established based on the date of the swaj amchaining contractual life equal to the
remaining life of the original option. Options igslito non-employee directors vested immediatelg. fair value per option is established
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, with resulting expense being recorded over thengpteriod of the award. Other than
restoration options, we have not issued any stptibias since 2003. As of December 31, 2010, ther® mo unrecognized compensation
expense related to stock options since all outstgnaptions were fully vested.

The following schedule summarizes stock optionvégtin the plan.

Weighted Aggregate Average
Average Intrinsic Remaining
Exercise Value Life
Shares Price (in thousands’ (years)
December 31, 200 1,857,66. $19.31
Grants 153,33¢ 62.0¢
Exercisec (1,031,51) 21.0¢
Terminatec (8,099 62.9¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 971,39: $ 23.7¢ $ 54,78« 1.64
Vested at December 31, 20 971,39: $ 23.7¢ $ 54,78¢ 1.64
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 971,39: $ 23.7¢ $ 54,78¢ 1.64
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Information on the intrinsic value of options exsed is as follows (in thousands):

2010 $43,48¢
2009 41,00°
2008 52,03¢

The fair value per option was estimated using tlaelBScholes option pricing model with the followiassumptions:

2010 Grants 2009 Grants 2008 Grants

Risk-free interest rat 47-1.01% 92-1.2% 4.5%
Dividend per share (quarterly amour $ .25-2¢ $ 242t $ .22-24
Expected volatility facto 30.2-31.2% 32.1-33.&% 31.2%
Expected option terr .01-3 year: .02-4 year: .3-5 year:
Weighted average fair value per opt $ 9.4% $ 9.0¢ $ 11.8C

RESTRICTED STOCK GRANTS. We have awarded performance-based restricted shade®stricted units to certain key employees and
non-employee directors. These restricted sharesemtdcted units are subject to certain vestingirements over a fivgear period, based
the company’s earnings growth. The awards alscafionéstrictions on the awardees’ ability to seltransfer vested shares or units for a
specified period of time. The fair value of thebargs is established based on the market prickeoddte of grant, discounted for post-vesting
holding restrictions. The discounts have variednfrt to 22 percent and are calculated using thekBeholes option pricing model.
Changes in measured stock price volatility andrésterates are the primary reasons for changéeidiscount. These grants are being
expensed based on the terms of the awards.

The following table summarizes our nonvested pearforce-based restricted stock grants as of Decedih@010:

Number of Restrictec
Shares and Units

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Value

Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 3,785,57I $ 40.4(
Granted 762,93} 63.31
Vested (760,54 38.6(
Forfeitures (114,089 39.1¢

Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 3,673,87! $ 45.57

The following table summarizes performance basedeshand units by year of grant:

Shares and unit:

Weighted Shares and unit:
granted, net of average grant
Year of grant First vesting date Last vesting date forfeitures date fair value nonvested

2007 December 31, 200 December 31, 201 319,89! $ 39.7(C 115,16:
2008 December 31, 200 December 31, 201 7,84¢ 42.6( 4,94¢
2008 December 31, 200 December 31, 201 2,443,09. 39.6¢ 1,954,591
2009 December 31, 201 December 31, 201 963,35: 44.0¢ 838,11°
2010 December 31, 201 December 31, 201 761,06t 63.3¢ 761,06¢
4,495,25! $ 45.57 3,673,87!
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We have also awarded restricted shares and urgertain key employees that vest primarily basetheir continued employment. The value
of these awards is established by the market pricdhe date of the grant and is being expensedtheeresting period of the award. The
following table summarizes these nonvested resttistock grants as of December 31, 2010:

Number of Restrictec
Weighted Average

Shares and Units Grant Date Fair Value

Nonvested at December 31, 2C 193,89¢ $ 22.7¢
Granted 0 0
Vested (54,56%) 31.0¢4
Forfeitures (940 46.2(
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 138,39: $ 19.3:

We have also issued to certain key employees ang&employee directors restricted units which are/fuésted upon issuance. These shares
and units contain restrictions on the awardeeditald sell or transfer vested shares or units&@pecified period of time. The fair value of
these shares is established using the same mettudsked above. These grants have been expengeg thar year they were earned.

A summary of the fair value of restricted stocktees(in thousands):

2010 $34,05¢
2009 18,22:
2008 19,10(

As of December 31, 2010, there is unrecognized emsegtion expense of $168.5 million related to pmesfy granted restricted shares and
units. The amount of future expense to be recogniz# be based on the company’s earnings growthaartain other conditions.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN. Our 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan allows opt@mees to contribute up to $10,000 of
their annual cash compensation to purchase conmgtank. Purchase price is determined using thergjgsiice on the last day of the quarter
discounted by 15 percent. Shares are vested imtegdi@he following is a summary of the employeecktpurchase plan activity (dollar
amounts in thousands):

Shares purchase Aggregate cos Expense recognize

by employees to employees by the company
2010 215,05 $ 11,27 $ 1,98¢
2009 240,50! 10,47 1,84¢
2008 230,08: 10,54( 1,85¢

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAMS. During 2007 and 2009, our Board of Directors autteat stock repurchase programs that allow
management to repurchase 10,000,000 shares urdeagthorization for reissuance upon the exerdiggnployee stock options and other
stock plans. There are no shares remaining to cbpae under the 2007 authorization. The activienthose programs for each of the
periods reported is as follows (dollar amountshimusands):

Total value of share:

Shares repurchase repurchased
2007 Progran
2008 Purchase 3,720,70: $ 200,80(
2009 Purchase 5,101,74 266,90(
2010 Purchase 1,114,84! 60,60(
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Total value of share:
Shares repurchase repurchased

2009 Progran
2010 Purchase 1,394,83 $ 90,50(

As of December 31, 2010, there were approximat@9B000 shares remaining for repurchase undeadthi®rization. These repurchases
expected to take place over multiple years. Wecareently purchasing shares under this 2009 awthtoin.

NOTE 7: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS. We offer a defined contribution profit-sharing asaliings plan which qualifies under section 401¢khe
Internal Revenue Code and covers all eligible @r8ployees. Annual profit-sharing contributions determined by us, in accordance with
the provisions of the plan. We can also elect tkamaatching contributions to the plan. Profit-shgrplan expense, including matching
contributions, was approximately (in thousands):

2010 $28,29:
2009 24,15;
2008 30,01¢

We have committed to a profit sharing match of fpercent of eligible compensation in 2010.

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN. The Robinson Companies Nonqualified Deferred Corsgon Plan provides
certain employees the opportunity to defer a sptifercentage or dollar amount of their cash amckscompensation. Participants may e

to defer up to 100 percent of their cash compemsalihe accumulated benefit obligation was $1.0ionilas of December 31, 2010 and 2C
We have purchased investments to fund the futabdlity. The investments had an aggregate markeewvaf $1.0 million as of December 31,
2010 and 2009 and are included in other asseteindnsolidated balance sheets. In addition, siticted shares granted but not yet delivered
or not yet forfeited are also held within this plan

LEASE COMMITMENTS. We lease certain facilities and equipment underaijprgy leases.

Information regarding our lease expense is as@lfin thousands):

2010 $36,94¢
2009 35,34¢
2008 32,13¢

Minimum future lease commitments under noncancelbdzise agreements in excess of one year as ofribec8&1, 2010, are as follows (in
thousands):

2011 $ 31,39¢
2012 22,51:
2013 18,84«
2014 15,72¢
2015 11,767
Thereaftel 21,22¢
Total $121,46¢

In addition to minimum lease payments, we are gipiaesponsible under our lease agreements t@papro rata share of maintenance
expenses, common charges, and real estate taites lofiildings we lease space in.
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LITIGATION.

On March 20, 2009, at the conclusion of a tridllinois State Court, Twelfth Judicial Circuit, @it Court of Will County, a jury entered a
verdict of $23.75 million against us, a federallfteorized motor carrier with which we contractedd ¢he motor carrier’s driver. The award
was entered in favor of three named plaintiffsdaiing a consolidated trial, stemming from an acetdbat occurred on April 1, 2004. The

motor carrier and the driver both admitted thahattime of the accident the driver was actingraagent for the motor carrier, and that the
load was being transported according to the tefnesiocontract with the motor carrier. Our contrelgarly defined the motor carrier as an
independent contractor. The verdict has the etiehblding us vicariously liable for the damagesszd by the admitted negligence of the

motor carrier and its driver. There were no clatheg our selection or retention of the motor cawas negligent.

Given our prior experience with claims of this matuve believe the court erred in allowing thesgnas to be considered by a jury. As a
result, we are vigorously pursuing all availablgadleavenues by which we may obtain relief fromvbaldict. We have sought relief from the
verdict in the Appellate Court of lllinois, Thirdidicial District. The appellate court heard orgjuanents in this case on January 19, 2011 and
a decision is expected to be issued during 2011.

Under the terms of the insurance program which agih place in 2004, we would be responsible ferfitst $5.0 million of claims of this
nature plus post judgment interest on the amousttaBse there are multiple potential outcomes, mémhich are reasonably possible, but
none of which we believe is probable, we have aobrded a liability for this claim at this time.

We are not subject to any other pending or threatditigation other than routine litigation arisiimgthe ordinary course of our business
operations, none of which is currently expectelliadwee a material adverse effect on our financiatité@m, results of operations, or cash flo

NOTE 8: ACQUISITIONS

In June 2009, we acquired the operating subsidiai&Valker, an international freight forwarder igaartered in London, England. The
purchase price, net of cash acquired, was $9.8milGoodwill recognized in this transaction amaahto $9.0 million. Other intangible
assets amounted to $2.2 million. All goodwill anley intangible assets related to this acquisiietax deductible over 15 years.

In July 2009, we acquired certain assets of ITGeHdn Laredo, Texas. ITC was a United States msstrokerage company specializing in
warehousing and distribution and cross-border sesvbetween the United States and Mexico. The paecprice was $7.0 million. Goodwill
recognized in this transaction amounted to $3.89anil Other intangible assets amount to $0.8 millidll goodwill and other intangible ass
related to this acquisition are tax deductible di&years.

In September 2009, we acquired certain assets gdiRont Farms Corporation, Inc., a produce marketimgpany, and an affiliated company
Quality Logistics, LLC, a transportation providéat focused on produce transportation, both heatkrped in Boca Raton, Florida. Cash paid
at acquisition was $29.0 million. Goodwill recogailzin this transaction amounted to $23.6 milliothéd intangible assets amount to $8.0
million. All goodwill and other intangible asseated to this acquisition are tax deductible d\eyears.

In August 2008, we acquired certain ongoing openatiof Transera International Holdings, Ltd., agrbforwarding company based in
Calgary, Canada. The purchase price was $51.7omiloodwill recognized in this transaction amodrtte$37.5 million. Other intangible
assets related to the acquisition amounted toi®élion which consists primarily of customer retatships, which are being amortized over
six years. All goodwill and other intangible assedated to this acquisition are tax deductiblerdMeyears.

Our results of operations were not materially imipddy any of these acquisitions individually oagregate. The results of operations and
financial condition of these acquisitions have bieefuded in our consolidated financial statemeimse their acquisition dates.
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NOTE 9: SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our unaudited results of operations for each ofginerters in the years ended December 31, 2012@0®@ are summarized below (in

thousands, except per share data).

201C
Total revenues
Transportatior
Sourcing
Information Service:
Total revenue
Costs and expense
Purchased transportation and related sen
Purchased products sourced for re:
Personnel expens
Other selling, general, and administrative expe
Total costs and expens
Income from operatior
Net income
Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha
Basic weighted average shares outstan
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock awatr
Diluted weighted average shares outstan
Market price range of common stor
High
Low

200¢
Total revenues
Transportatior
Sourcing
Information Service
Total revenue
Costs and expense
Purchased transportation and related sen
Purchased products sourced for re:
Personnel expens
Other selling, general, and administrative expe
Total costs and expens
Income from operatior
Net income
Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha
Basic weighted average shares outstan
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock awar
Diluted weighted average shares outstan
Market price range of common stot
High
Low

March 31 June 30 September 3( December 31
$1,639,231  $1,963,94. $2,026,15  $1,946,32!
422,65! 476,07 380,10t 364,33
12,72¢ 13,96¢ 14,09: 14,68
2,074,61  2,453,98  2,420,35  2,325,34
1,354,29 1,654,08! 1,689,59 1,604,55.
387,71 435,26( 348,18 332,63
146,75! 154,09: 161,94° 169,27:
49,83¢ 54,08 54,30( 54,82¢
1,938,61 2,297,522 2,254,02. 2,161,28
136,00° 156,45! 166,33: 164,06!
$ 84,01 $ 97,22¢ $ 102,620 $ 103,16:
$ 051 $ 05¢ $ 06z $ 0.6:
$ 05C $ 05¢ $ 0.6z $ 0.62
165,44( 164,74¢ 164,69 164,72¢
1,13¢ 1,01€ 88t 1,34¢€
166,57! 165,76! 165,57¢ 166,07!
$ 6368 $ 621t $ 7087 $ 81.0-
$ 51.1¢ $ 53.8¢ $ 5450 $ 68.74
March 31 June 30 September 3( December 31
$1,318,521  $1,487,57 $1,563,33! $1,606,66.
359,13 427,01( 379,59: 389,55
10,34( 11,43: 11,87 12,14¢
1,688,00! 1,926,02I 1,954,80. 2,008,36!
1,020,83. 1,181,35 1,253,50: 1,312,83.
328,56 392,96: 348,73« 356,44¢
153,22¢ 151,74 148,75( 143,85:
48,01: 50,07 49,01°¢ 52,47¢
1,550,63. 1,776,13I 1,800,00. 1,865,60:
137,36¢ 149,84 154,80 142,75¢

$ 8538 $ 92,25¢ §$ 9546( $ 87,73
$ 5C % 55 8 57 % .53
$ 5C 9 54 8 57 9 .52
169,14( 167,97: 167,19: 166,25¢
1,68¢ 1,612 1,45} 1,471
170,82! 169,58 168,64 167,72¢

$ 5614 $ 5528 $ 596 $ 61.6¢
$ 373 $ 441¢ $ 49.06 $ 54.5¢
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial Officer, we
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and tperaf our disclosure controls and procedureglgfied in Rule 13a-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange AcBased upon that evaluation, the Chief Execud¥fécer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of the end of the period covbyeithis report, our disclosure controls and proced were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Finarcial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. All interoahtrol systems, no matter how well designed, lialverent limitations. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can peasidy reasonable assurance with respect to finhsi@tement preparation and
presentation.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofirernal control over financial reporting basedtloa framework in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiase®l on our evaluation under the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framewarkr management concluded that our internal cootret financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2010.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2010 has beditealiby Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,taged in their report which is included in Item 8.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reportng

There have not been any changes to the comparigi®iat control over financial reporting during tfloeirth quarter that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, the company’s internal control over finaneigborting.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

Information with respect to our Board of Directomtained under the heading “Election of Directoasd information contained under the
heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership RepgrtCompliance” in the Proxy Statement are incorfgar@n this Form 10-K by reference.
Information with respect to our executive officexprovided in Part I, Item 1.

We have adopted a code of ethics that appliesitprincipal executive officer, principal financiafficer, principal accounting officer,
directors, and all other company employees perfogrsimilar functions. This code of ethics, whiclpét of our corporate compliance
program, is posted on the Investors page of ousiteeht www.chrobinson.com under the caption “CofilEthics.”

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirementuritgm 10 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment tayaiver from, a provision of this
code of ethics by posting such information on oabsite, at the web address specified above.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained under the heading “Ex@eu€ompensation” in the Proxy Statement (excepttfe information set forth under the
subcaption “Compensation Committee Report on Exee@ompensation”) is incorporated in this FormKL@y reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) Equity Compensation Plans
The following table summarizes share and exerdige information about our equity compensation plaa of December 31, 2010:

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities Weighted averagi future issuance under
to be issued upon exercise price of equity compensation plan
exercise of outstanding (excluding securities
outstanding options, options, warrants reflected in the first
Plan Category warrants and rights and rights column)
Equity compensation plans approved by securit
holders® 5,794,78: $ 23.7¢ 7,021,63:
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: — — —
Total 5,794,78. $ 23.7¢ 7,021,63:

(1) Includes stock available for issuance underQitectors’ Stock Plan and our Employee Stock PasehPlan, as well as options,
restricted stock granted and shares that may besahject to future awards under our 1997 OmnibosikSPlan. Specifically, 270
shares remain available under our Direct&tsick Plan, 4,823,120 shares remain available umgeEmployee Stock Purchase Plan,
971,393 options remain outstanding for future eiserdJnder our 1997 Omnibus Stock Plan, 7,021,638es may become subject to
future awards in the form of stock option grantshar issuance of restricted sto
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(b) Security Ownership

The information contained under the heading “Ség@ivnership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Maragnt” in the Proxy Statement is
incorporated in this Form 10-K by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information contained under the heading “Rel®arty Transactions” in the Proxy Statement istiporated in this Form 10-K by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information contained under the heading “Prapd&ree: Ratification of Independent Auditors’tive Proxy Statement is incorporated in
this Form 10-K by reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORT S ON FORM &-K
(@ The following documents are filed as part of tiepart:

(1) The Company’s 2010 Consolidated Financial $tatgs and the Report of Independent RegistereddPAbtounting Firm are
included in Part Il, Item 8. Financial Statementd &upplementary Data.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules — The followimgfcial Statement Schedule should be read in oetipn with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Report on IndependensRegd Public Accounting Firm included in Parttém 8 of this Annual report on
Form 10-K:

Schedule I Valuation and Qualifying Acmts

Schedules other than the one listed above areashitie to the absence of conditions under whichdhe required or because the
information called for is included in Consolidateéihancial Statements or the Notes to the Cons@ktnancial Statements.

(3) Index to Exhibits — See Exhibit Index on pa@efér a description of the documents that are fdedExhibits to this report on Form
10-K or incorporated by reference herein. Any doentiincorporated by reference is identified by eepthetical referencing the SEC
filing which included the document. We will furnishcopy of any Exhibit at no cost to a securitydeolupon request.

(b) Reports on Form-K
The following reports on Form 8-K were filed duritige last quarter of the period covered by thiorep

Report on Form 8-K, dated October 26, 2010, firdannection with our release of earnings for tre¢ months ended September 30,
2010.

Report on Form 8-K, dated December 9, 2010, anrexuittaat its Board of Directors today declared amease to the regular quarterly
cash dividend from 25 cents ($0.25) per share toe2®s ($0.29) per share, payable on January 3, 205hareholders of record on
December 20, 2010.

Report on Form 8-K, dated December 15, 2010, antexlithat Steven L. Polacek notified the companydha to the demands of his
new position as Senior Vice President and Chiedir@nal Officer of Capella Education Company, hd vesign from the Board of
Directors of the Company effective January 1, 2011.

(c) See ltem 15(a)(3) abov
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SCHEDULE II. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The transactions in the allowance for doubtful acts for the years ended December 31, 2010, 20@92@08 were as follows (in
thousands):

December 31 December 31 December 31

2010 2009 2008
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 30,65 $ 29,26: $ 28,02
Provision 13,92: 16,68¢ 14,32¢
Write-offs (13,629 (15,29) (13,089
Balance, end of ye: $ 30,94¢ $ 30,65 $ 29,268
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13(t)1of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thggsteant has duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredutyp authorized, in the City of Eden Prairie, Statélinnesota, on March, 1, 2011.

C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC.

By: /sl BEN G. CAMPBELL

Ben G. Campbe
Vice President, General Counsel and Secre

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbiothe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities indicated @ndi 1, 2011.

Signature Title.
/sl JOHN P. WIEHOFF Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Bodpdiricipal Executivt
John P. Wiehof Officer)
/sl CHAD M. LINDBLOOM Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offiderifcipal Financial
Chad M. Lindbloorr Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
* Director

David W. MacLennai

* Director
ReBecca Koenig Rolo

* Director
Robert Ezrilov

* Director
Michael W. Wickharnr

* Director
James B. Stak

* Director
Wayne M. Fortur

* Director
Brian P. Shor

*By: /sl BEN G. CAMPBELL
Ben G. Campbe
Attorney-in-Fact
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Number Description
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (as aded on February 18, 2010) (Incorporated by refaxea Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrar's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20
3.2 Bylaws of the Company (Incorporated by referencExbibit 3.2 to the Registrant’'s Registration Sta¢at on Form S-1,
Registration No. 3:-33731)
3.3 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiating Preferred Stock of the Company (Incorpentdty reference to Exhibit
3.3 to the Registra’s Registration Statement on For-1, Registration No. 3:-33731)
4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock (Incorporatgdreference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s iBegtion Statement on
Form &1, Registration No. 3:-33731)
4.2 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement betweendimp&ny and Wells Fargo Bank, National Associationdrporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Regist’'s Current Report on Forn-K dated September 10, 20(
110.1 1997 Omnibus Stock Plan (as amended May 18, 200&)rporated by reference to Appendix A to the Rr8tatement on
Form DEF 14A filed on April 6, 200¢
110.2 Form of Stock Option Agreement (Incorporated byrefce to Exhibit 10.22 to the RegistrariRegistration Statement on Fc
S-1, Registration No. 3:-33731)
110.3 C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. Directors’ Stock Plamcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 19
104 Form of Management-Employee Agreement (Key Emplpy@eorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20
10.5 Form of Management Confidentiality and NoncompatitAgreement (Incorporated by reference to ExHiBib to the
Registrar's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20
10.6 Form of Management Confidentiality and Noncompetithgreement (Incorporated by reference to ExHiBi21 to the
Registrar’'s Registration Statement on For-1, Registration No. 3:-33731)
t10.7 Management Bonus Plan (Incorporated by referenég@pendix B to the Proxy Statement on Form DEF 1 on April 15,
2005)
110.8 Management Bonus Plan (Incorporated by referen&iibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Annual Reportrarm 10-K for the

year ended December 31, 19!

110.9 Robinson Companies Nonqualified Deferred Compens&lan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit th® Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8, Registration No. 3:-47080 filed on September 29, 20(

10.10 Robinson Companies Nonqualified Deferred Compensdtian Trust Agreement, dated January 1, 200anbybetween C.H.
Robinson Worldwide, Inc. and American Express T@snpany (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1d®?the Registrarg’
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

110.11 Award of Deferred Shares into the Robinson CompaNienqualified Deferred Compensation Plan, dateckDer 21, 2000,
by and between C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. artthJ®. Wiehoff (Incorporated by reference to Exhitit22 to the
Registrar's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20
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Number

10.12

10.13

*21
*23.1
*24
*31.1
*31.2
*32.1
*32.2
*101

Description
Form of Restricted Stock Award for U.S. ManageEaiployees (Incorporated by reference to Exhibil2@o the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Form of Restricted Unit Award for U.S. Manageriahployees(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@dlthe Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Subsidiaries of the Compal

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LL

Powers of Attorne'

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudao Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

The following financial statements from our Anné&adport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembel@10, filed on
March 1, 2011, formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidat8thtement of Operations for the years ended Dece®ih@010, 2009, ar
2008, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Deee®b, 2010 and 2009, (iii) Consolidated StatemefiGash Flows for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, (iv) Colasedl Statements of Stockholc’ Investment for the years ended 2010,
2009, and 2008, and (v) the Notes to the Conseliikinancial Statements, tagged as blocks of

* Filed herewitr
t Management contract or compensatory plan or geraent required to be filed as an exhibit to Fof¥Klpursuant to Item 15(c) of the
Form 1(-K Report
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Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF C.H. ROBINSON WORLDWIDE, INC.

The following is a list of subsidiaries of the Coamy as of December 31, 2010, omitting some subdiavhich, considered in aggregate,
would not constitute a significant subsidiary.

Name Where incorporated
C.H. Robinson International, In Minnesota, US#
C.H. Robinson Worldwide Chile, S., Chile

C.H. Robinson de Mexico, S.A. de C. Mexico

C.H. Robinson Company (Canada) L Canade

C.H. Robinson Compar Delaware, US#
C.H. Robinson Company, In Minnesota, US#
CHR Aviation LLC Minnesota, US#
T-Chek Systems, Inc./Les Syteme-Chek, Inc. Minnesota, US/
C.H. Robinson Worldwide Foundatis Minnesota, US#
C.H. Robinson Worldwide Logistics (Dalian) Co. L China

C.H. Robinson Worldwide (Hong Kong) Lt Hong Kong
C.H. Robinson Worldwide Argentina, S. Argentina

C.H. Robinson Worldwide Logistica Brasil Ltc Brazil

C.H. Robinson Czech Republic s. Czech Republi
C.H. Robinson France S# France

C.H. Robinson Worldwide Gmb Germany

C.H. Robinson Hungary Transport, LLC (C.H. Robinstmgaria Kft) Hungary

C.H. Robinson ltalia S.r. Italy

C.H. Robinson Europe B.\ Netherland
C.H. Robinson Poland Sp. zo Poland

C.H. Robinson Iberica S Spain

C.H. Robinson (UK) Ltd United Kingdom
C.H. Robinson Worldwide Freight India Private Liget India

C.H. Robinson Belgium BVB!/ Belgium

C.H Robinson Worldwide (Shanghai) Co. L China

C.H. Robinson Worldwide Singapore Pte. Singapore
Transera International Logistics Li Canade

Transera International Logistics F: Dubai



Trans«Era International Logistics Sdn. Bt
C.H. Robinson Worldwide (Australia) Pty. LI
C.H. Robinson Worldwide (Ireland) Lt

C.H. Robinson Worldwide (UK) Ltc

C.H. Robinson International Puerto Rico, |
C.H. Robinson Luxembourg, SAF

C.H. Robinson Worldwide Peru £

C.H Robinson Worldwide (Malaysia) Sdn. Bl
Transera International Logistics Pte. L

C.H. Robinson Sourcing SA

C.H. Robinson Sweden A

C.H. Robinson International Italy, SF
Wagonmaster Transportation Comp:
Transera International Logistics, Ir
Rosemont Farms, LL!

C.H. Robinson Logistica Chile, Ltd

C.H. Robinson Worldwide SA de C
Transera International Peru, S/

Walker Logistics (Overseas) Lt

Robinson Holding Compar

Malaysia
Australia
Ireland

United Kingdom
Puerto Ricc
Luxembourg
Peru

Malaysia
Singapore
France

Sweder

Italy
Minnesota, US#
Texas, USA
Minnesota, US#
Chile

Mexico

Peru

United Kingdom
Minnesota, US#



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegjion Statements No. 333-41027, 333-53047,88880, 333-110396, and 333-155166
on Form S-8 of our reports dated March 1, 201 htired to the financial statements and financiaiesteent schedule of C.H. Robinson
Worldwide, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”)idhe effectiveness of the Company’s internal adrdver financial reporting, appearing
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compaaythe year ended December 31, 2010.

i L —

bm!% €)oo P

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 1, 2011



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below constitutes anmrgpgeach of John P.
Wiehoff and Ben G. Campbell (with full power to @bbne), as his or her true and lawful attorneyfaat and agent, with full power of
substitution and resubstitution, for him or her amtlis or her name, place and stead, in any drahpéhcities, to sign the Annual Report on
Form 10-K of C.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc. for tfigcal year ended December 31, 2010, and any dadn@ndments to said Annual
Report, and to file the same, with all exhibitsréte, and other documents in connection therewiith the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and to file the same with such othénarities as necessary, granting unto said atteHieyact and agents full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actthimg) requisite or necessary to be done in andtabeypremises, as fully to all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in persmeby ratifying and confirming all that said attey-in-fact and agent, or their substitute or
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney has begned by the following persons on the dates aueid.

Signature Date

/s/ REBEccAK OENIGR OLOFF
ReBecca Koenig Rolo

February 10, 2011

/s/ ROBERTE zriLOV
Robert Ezrilov

February 10, 2011

/s/ Davib W. M Ac L ENNAN
David W. MacLennai

February 10, 2011

/sl WAYNE M. F ORTUN
Wayne M. Fortur

February 10, 2011

/sl JamESB. STAKE
James B. Stak

February 10, 2011

/s/ BRIAN P. SHORT
Brian P. Shor

February 10, 2011

/s/ MicHAEL W. W ICKHAM
Michael W. Wickharr

February 10, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002

I, John P. Wiehoff, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKC.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtf@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

March 1, 2011

/s/ JOHN P. WIEHOFF
John P. Wiehof
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 2002

I, Chad M. Lindbloom, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKC.H. Robinson Worldwide, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financearting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal coheer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gmniifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

March 1, 2011

/s/ CHAD M. LINDBLOOM
Chad M. Lindbloorr
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of C.H. RolendVorldwide, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fibre period ended
December 31, 2010 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R@partiohn P. Wiehoff, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursuant to Se@@6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, that:

The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financiadition and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ JOHN P. WIEHOFF
John P. Wiehof
Chief Executive Office

March 1, 2011



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of C.H. RolendVorldwide, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fibre period ended
December 31, 2010 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8parChad M. Lindbloom,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuaredthio® 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002, that:

The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financiadition and results of operations of the
Company

/s/ CHAD M. LINDBLOOM
Chad M. Lindbloormr
Chief Financial Office

March 1, 2011



